
Regular 
Board Meeting 

Board Room 

June 27, 2022 



Fruitport Community Schools 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

Board Room  
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd, Fruitport 49415 
Monday, June 27, 2022 - 7:00 p.m. 

I. CALL to ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

IV. PRESENTATIONS
Brady Kemmerling, Eagle Scout Project

V. COMMUNICATIONS
MSBO Communication: Kathy Randall - Certified Transportation Director

VI. SUPERINTENDENT/ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS
End of Year Goal Reporting and Data Review Update - Allison Camp

VII. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC*

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2022 (attachment VIII-1)
2. Approval of Bills (attachment VIII-2)

General Fund $207,576.88 
Other Funds: 

Early Childhood Center 1,570.61 
Food Service 70,796.93  

Total Bill List $279,944.42 
3. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Report and ACH Transactions (attachment VIII-3)
4. Acceptance of Student Activity Summary Report (attachment VIII-4)
5. Acceptance of Credit Card and Utilities Report (attachment VIII-5)
6. Approval of Capital Projects Progress Report (attachment VIII-6)
7. Approval of 2021 Bond Report (attachment VIII-7)
8. Approval of Personnel Report (includes confirmation of new hires, resignations,

retirees, and transfers) (attachment VIII-8)

IX. GENERAL BOARD BUSINESS
1. Fruitport 2022-23 Parent/Student Athletic Handbook (attachment IX-1)
2. Withdrawal from the Adair Lawsuit against the State of Michigan (attachment IX-2)

Page 2 of 115



X. BUSINESS & FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS
Elroy Buckner, Chairperson
1. Report of Committee Meeting held June 20, 2022 (attachment X-1)
2. General Fund Budget Amendment for 2021-2022 (attachment X-2)
3. School Service Fund Budget Amendment for 2021-2022 (attachment X-3)
4. Budget Appropriations Act of the 2022-2023 General Fund (attachment X-4)
5. Budget Appropriations Act of the 2022-2023 School Svc Fund (attachment X-5)
6. Form L-4029 (attachment X-6)
7. Purchase of Engraver (attachment X-7)

XI. PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS
Steve Kelly, Chairperson
1. Report of Committee Meeting held June 20, 2022 (attachment XI-1)
2. Agreement with North Muskegon for Business Services (attachment XI-2)
3. Non Affiliated Staff Salary Increase (attachment XI-3)

XII. STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS Susan
Franklin, Chairperson
1. Report of Committee Meeting held June 20, 2022 (attachment XII-1)
2. Curricular Resource Purchases (attachment XII-2)
3. Virtual Programming for 2022-2023: EdOptions Academy Course Catalog (attachment
XII-3)

XIII. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
1. Special Presentation Recognizing Maribeth Clarke

XIV. AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS & SCHEDULING OF SPECIAL
MEETINGS
1. Schedule Business & Finance Committee Meeting
2. Schedule Personnel Committee Meeting
3. Schedule Student Affairs Committee Meeting

XV. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC*

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

*Time is provided for members of the audience to address the Board of Education regarding any topic
including items on the agenda.  The board is providing two opportunities for the public to comment during the
meeting.  The first is for people who wish to bring issues to the Board of Education for board consideration.
At the end of the meeting the board will provide a brief opportunity for community members to comment on
activities and/or discussion that took place during the board meeting.  Time limits may be placed if a large
number of individuals would like to address the board.

Page 3 of 115



Page 4 of 115



Extended COVID-19 Learning Plan 
Version: Strict Adherence to Legislation  

Goal Reporting 
Required by February 1, 2022 and by End of 21/22 School Year 

 
Date: June 27, 2022 
 

Goal Category Goal Related to Achievement or Growth on K - 8 Benchmarks 

Middle of the Year 
Reading Goal 

All students (K - 8) will improve performance in Reading/ELA from fall to winter as 
measured by i-Ready.   

End of the Year 
Reading Goal 

All students (K - 8) will improve performance in Reading/ELA from fall to spring as 
measured by i-Ready.  

Middle of the Year 
Mathematics Goal 

All students (K - 8) will improve performance in Math from fall to winter as measured 
by i-Ready.   

End of the Year 
Mathematics Goal 

All students (K - 8) will improve performance in Math from fall to spring as measured 
by i-Ready. 

 
 
Diagnostic 2:  End of the Year Achievement Data on Benchmark Assessment 
 
Reading 

● All Students K - 8 (1748 students) 
 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

32% 21% 27% 7% 13% 
 
 

● Economically Disadvantaged Students (812 students) 
 

Page 5 of 115

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1CtWo9YgTXT9T4XZqs4IdUCJ9R4S-p5mHMvh0HynBFIs/edit?usp=sharing


Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

23% 22% 29% 9% 17% 
 

● Special Education Students (307 students) 
 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

15% 13% 28% 14% 30% 
 

● ELL - too few students to report (16 students) 
● Female Students (832 students) 

 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

33% 25% 25% 7% 11% 
 

● Male Students (916 students) 
 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

31% 18% 28% 7% 16% 
 
 
 
 
 

Math 
● All Students K - 8 (1755 students) 

Mid or Above Grade Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels Three or More Grade 

Page 6 of 115



Level Below Levels or Below 

26% 20% 36% 7% 11% 
 

● Economically Disadvantaged (817 students) 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

16% 19% 41% 11% 14% 
 

● Special Education Students (310 students) 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

14% 8% 37% 12% 28% 
 

● ELL - too few students to report (16 students) 
● Female Students (834 students) 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

25% 19% 40% 8% 9% 
 

● Male Students (921 students) 

Mid or Above Grade 
Level 

Early on Grade Level One Grade Level Below Two Grade Levels 
Below 

Three or More Grade 
Levels or Below 

27% 20% 33% 7% 13% 
 

Page 7 of 115



VIII-1 
Fruitport Board of Education 

Regular Monthly Meeting 
May 16, 2022 7:00 p.m. 

Board Room 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd, Fruitport 

 
I. The Regular meeting of the Board of Education was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by 

Board President, Dave Hazekamp. 
 

II. The PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was recited. 
 

III. ROLL CALL:  Present – Elroy Buckner, Tim Burgess, Kris Cole, Susan Franklin, Dave 
Hazekamp, Steve Kelly, and JB Meeuwenberg. 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Item 22-063.  MOTION by Buckner, SECOND by Cole to approve the agenda as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 

 
V. PRESENTATIONS 

Dave Hazekamp presented Fruitport employees, Stasia Fielstra and Mark Fialek Above 
and Beyond awards. Stasia was recognized for her quick thinking in saving a choking 
student and Mark was recognized for his ability to problem-solve in the maintenance 
department, saving the district thousands of dollars. 

 
VI. COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 
 

VII. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC  
Kendrah Robinson introduced himself as a 14th Circuit Court Judge candidate for 
Muskegon County.  Kendrah and her husband are parents of an Edgewood student. 

 
VIII. SUPERINTENDENT/ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

Superintendent, Jason Kennedy spoke about Public Act 48 of 2021. He shared that a 
Goal Progress Report would be presented at the June board meeting.  He also briefly 
reported on the progress of M-Step testing. 
 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 
Item 22-064.  MOTION by Cole, SECOND by Burgess to approve the Consent Agenda as listed 
below: 

1. Approval of Special Board Meeting Minutes of May 9, 2022 
2. Acceptance of Bills, Monthly Financial Report, and ACH Transactions  
3. Acceptance of Student Activity Summary Report 
4. Acceptance of Credit Card and Utilities Report  
5. Approval of Capital Projects Progress Report 
6. Approval of 2021 Bond Report 
7. Approval of the Personnel Report  

MOTION CARRIED 7-0  

Page 8 of 115



  
 

X. GENERAL BOARD BUSINESS 
1. MAISD 2022-23 General Fund Budget Resolution. 

Item 22-065.  MOTION by Meeuwenberg, SECOND by Franklin to approve the MAISD 2022-23 
General Fund Budget Resolution as presented. Roll call: Buckner, Yes; Burgess, Yes; Cole, 
Yes; Franklin, Yes; Hazekamp, Yes; Kelly, Yes; Meeuwenberg, Yes. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 

2. MHSAA 2022-23 Membership Resolution. 
Item 22-066.  MOTION by Cole, SECOND by Franklin to approve the MHSAA  
2022-23 Membership Resolution as presented. Roll call: Buckner, Yes; Burgess, Yes; Cole, 
Yes; Franklin, Yes; Hazekamp, Yes; Kelly, Yes; Meeuwenberg, Yes. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 
XI. BUSINESS AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Report of a committee meeting held May 9, 2022. 
Elroy Buckner reported on a Business and Finance Committee meeting held in the 
Superintendent’s Office on May 9, 2022. Dave Hazekamp, Kris Cole, Elroy Buckner, 
Jason Kennedy, John Winskas, Jessica Wiseman, and Mark Mesbergen were present.  
The committee discussed: the North Point Drainage Agreement, Bulletin 01-Change 
Order Request, Turf, Track, and Parking Civil Engineering, Athletic Passes, School of 
Choice Data, and a Fruitport Education Association Letter of Agreement. 
 
2. North Point Drainage District Agreement. 

Item 22-067.  MOTION by Buckner, SECOND by Cole to authorize Jason Kennedy, the 
Superintendent, or his designee, to sign the North Point Drain Drainage District Agreement, the 
related easement and quit claim deed, and execute any other necessary documents to 
effectuate the conveyance, subject to review and approval of the District’s legal counsel as 
presented. 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0, Abstain - Meeuwenberg 
 
XII. PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Report of a committee meeting held May 9, 2022. 
Steve Kelly reported on a Personnel Committee meeting held in the Superintendent’s 
Office on May 9, 2022. Dave Hazekamp, Steve Kelly, JB Meeuwenberg and Jason 
Kennedy were present.  The committee discussed: a Letter of Agreement with Fruitport 
Education Association, Teaching Hiring Recommendations, and Bulletin 01-Change 
Order Request. They received a general overview of topics discussed in other 
committee meetings. 
 

XIII. STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. Report of a committee meeting held May 9, 2022. 
Susan Franklin reported on a Student Affairs Committee meeting held in the 
Superintendent’s Office on May 9, 2022. Dave Hazekamp, Tim Burgess, Susan Franklin, 
Jonny Morehouse and Jason Kennedy were present.  The committee discussed: 
Updates to the Adult Ed Handbook, Board Policy 5407, and Athletic Ticket Pricing. They 
received a general overview of topics discussed in other committee meetings. 

Page 9 of 115



 
 

 
2. Updated Adult Education Handbook. 

Item 22-068.  MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Burgess to approve the updates to the Adult 
Education Handbook as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 

3. Updated Board Policy #5407. 
Item 22-069.  MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Burgess to approve the updates to Board 
Policy 5407 as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 

4. Home Athletic Event Ticket Pricing Plan. 
Item 22-070.  MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Burgess to approve the athletic ticket pricing 
plan for the 2022-23 school year as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 

5. Overnight Trip Request. 
Item 22-071.  MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Burgess to approve the overnight trip request 
as presented. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 
XIV. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  

Kris Cole spoke about Robotics’ fundraisers happening during Old Fashioned Days. 
 
John Winskas mentioned a dance competition held over the weekend in the Performing 
Arts Center.  Everything went well and the district earned a substantial profit from the 
event. 
 
Tim Burgess shared his wonderful experience with middle school students at the LMCU 
ballpark. 
 
Dave Hazekamp commended Tom Hamilton, Emily Basse, and Kelly Chase on a recent 
K-5 Choir Concert.  The concert was well attended and the kids did a great job! 
 
Jason Kennedy stated that the district has been awarded various MHSAA tournaments 
for the upcoming school year mostly due to the new high school. 

 
XV. AGENDA ITEMS for FUTURE MEETINGS & SCHEDULING OF ANY SPECIAL  
           MEETINGS 

1. Business and Finance Committee will meet June 20, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. 
2. Personnel Committee will meet June 20, 2022 at 4:30 p.m. 
3. Student Affairs Committee will meet June 20, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. 
4. Truth and Taxation Hearing, June 27, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

XVI. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC 
None. 

Page 10 of 115



 
 

 
XVII. ADJOURNMENT 
Item 22-072.  MOTION by Cole, SECOND by Franklin to adjourn. 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 

  
The meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,   
 
 
 
Steve Kelly       
Board Secretary      
 
 
 
Maribeth Clarke 
Recording Secretary 

Page 11 of 115



VIII-2

AMOUNT

GENERAL FUND $207,576.88

EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER $1,570.61

FOOD SERVICE $70,796.93

GRAND TOTAL  $279,944.42

 
 
 

FRUITPORT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
BILL LIST

 Month of May 2022

FUND

Page 12 of 115



 

Food Service Tech/Security ECC Bldg & Site

Capital Projects 
2017

Capital Projects 
2021 2010 2012 Refund 2017 2021

Beginning Fund Balance: 4,403,989          526,813           284,158            289,276          1,178,169   6,284,142      7,967,931      182,703    266,837      1,111,081       -                

Revenues:

Budgeted revenues: 33,124,726        1,604,744       550,000            754,000          -                -                  -             -                -                    -                

Actual revenues:             

Jul. 23,799                -                    -                     64,041             18                  221                 72                    88,152             

Aug. 338,825              1,842                3,046                 61,224             18                  186                 84                    62,322      56,045         230,010           99,985         853,589           

Sep. 1,054,197          5,878                43,780              81,838             71,012         99                    67                    188,259    169,297      694,796           302,026      2,611,250       

Oct. 3,262,374          140,064           87,803              64,397             12                  77                    70                    323,108    290,565      1,192,478       518,368      5,879,316       

Nov. 2,558,058          12,190             57,482              66,226             11                  62                    66                    54               48                 198                   86                 2,694,482       

Dec. 2,556,697          361,331           874                    51,352             12                  60                    67                    380            342               1,403                610               2,973,128       

Jan. 3,032,299          169,215           31,478              387,966          12                  48                    59                    56,509      50,817         208,553           90,658         4,027,614       

Feb. 2,730,662          223,280           123,212            62,808             43,041         39                    55                    33,810      30,405         124,781           54,242         3,426,335       

Mar. 3,579,131          192,677           114,887            85,922             95                  313                 359                 13,034      11,721         48,103             20,910         4,067,152       

Apr. 2,283,342          292,608           73,905              64,196             304               809                 1,749              134,713    3,027           12,422             5,400           2,872,474       
May 157,028              9,039                445                    35,870             659               1,536              3,940              881            793               3,253                1,414           214,858           

Total Actual Revenues 21,576,413        1,408,124       536,911            1,025,840       115,196       3,452              6,588              813,070    613,060      2,515,997       1,093,699   29,708,349     

Pro Rated buget Variance to date: Rev 8,787,919.50    62,891.53       (32,744.08)      (334,673.22)   

Expenses:

Budgeted expenditures: (33,258,315)      (1,626,896)     (442,767)          (785,536)        -                -                  -                  -             -                -                    -                

Actual expenditures:^

Jul. (757,247)            (13,333)           (22,180)            (36,635)           -                -                  (63,927)          -             -                -                    -                (893,322)         

Aug. (725,627)            (11,214)           (116,099)          (53,761)           -                (1,343,270)    (18,000)          -             -                -                    -                (2,267,972)     

Sep. (2,332,170)         (53,498)           (54,433)            (57,369)           (59,978)        (903,835)       -                  (3,461,283)     

Oct. (3,393,573)         (243,647)         (17,611)            (112,211)        -                (973,799)       (7,840)            (168,013)  (9,138)          (1,136,500)     (88,851)       (6,151,183)     

Nov. (2,380,400)         (159,188)         (100,338)          (65,265)           -                (452,677)       (6,497)            -             -                -                    -                (3,164,365)     

Dec. (2,496,374)         (158,225)         (40,287)            (89,434)           -                (646,310)       (924,074)       (1,000)       -                -                    (4,355,705)     

Jan. (2,960,270)         (76,038)           (10,903)            (72,981)           (13,730)        (9,140)            -                  -             -                (500)                 -                (3,143,561)     

Feb. (2,601,962)         (130,279)         (73,936)            (89,985)           -                (957,820)       -                  -             -                -                    -                (3,853,981)     

Mar. (2,657,676)         (186,756)         (8,095)               (78,150)           -                (376,153)       (500)                -             -                (500)                 -                (3,307,830)     

Apr. (3,465,831)         (164,318)         (18,341)            (95,772)           -                (167,425)       (137,335)       (638,013)  (734,138)     (1,911,500)     (832,175)     (8,164,848)     
May (2,493,723)         (122,905)         (2,690)               (106,378)        -                (77,648)          (183,541)       -             -                -                    -                (2,986,884)     

Total Actual Expenses (26,264,853)      (1,319,401)     (464,914)          (857,940)        (73,708)        (5,908,077)    (1,341,714)    (807,025)  (743,275)     (3,049,000)     (921,026)     (41,750,934)   

Pro Rated budget Variance to date: Exp (4,221,935.73)   (171,920.00)   59,043.81        137,865.81    

Ending Balance to date: (284,451)            615,535           356,155            457,175          1,219,657   379,517         6,632,805      188,748    136,622      578,079           

Projected Ending Balance: 4,270,400          504,661           391,391            257,740          1,178,169   6,284,142      7,967,931      182,703    266,837      1,111,081       

Revenues over(under) Expenses to date: (12,042,585)

^Fifth Third Bank auto deductions have been included in actual expenditure totals

GENERAL FUND SCHOOL SERVICE FUNDS CAPITAL PROJECTS Totals

Page 13 of 115



Payment Date Debit Account Desc Amount
5/10/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - Payroll - USD 106,823.41                  

***IRS Payment Transfer
5/12/2022 Checking - General Account - USD Checking - Debt Retirement Acct - USD 23,517.75                    

***Deposit Correction
5/12/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - Payroll - USD 840,322.04                  

***5/13/22 Payroll & ORS Deposit
5/17/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - General Account - USD 300,000.00                  

***General Account Low
5/24/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - HRA - USD 6,000.00                      

***HRA Account Low
5/26/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - Payroll - USD 820,274.76                  

***5/27/22 Payroll & ORS Transfer

Total Transfers in May 2,096,937.96$            

EduStaff (contracted staff/subs) 171,236.56$                                            
Credit Card 93,727.45$                                              
Arbiter (official pay) 1,627.00$                                                 
E-Pars (employee 403b) 33,660.99$                                              
Insurance (MESSA, Priority, Set Seg & HSA's) 49,308.34$                                              

Total ACH's in May 349,560.34$                                            

May 2022 Transfers
Credit Account Desc

                          May 2022 ACH's

Page 14 of 115



Student Activity Sub Totals  BEGINNING BALANCE NET CHANGE ENDING BALANCE

District Wide Student Activity Accounts 49,414.03                         (2,611.73)         46,802.30                  

Beach Elementary Student Activity Accounts 30,063.24                         (885.67)            29,177.57                  

Edgewood Elementary Student Activity Accounts 27,477.78                         (5,051.40)         22,426.38                  

High School Class of Student Activity Accounts 7,554.47 -                    7,554.47

High School Athletic Student Activity Accounts 76,554.97                         (19,110.49)       57,444.48                  

High School Student Activity Accounts 139,384.73                       4,943.28          144,328.01                

Middle School Student Activity Accounts 38,081.33                         831.16              38,912.49                  

Shettler Elementary Student Activity Accounts 20,486.12                         4,901.16          25,387.28                  

Alt. High School Student Activity Accounts 600.44                               -                    600.44                       

Millionaire Party Accounts 22,832.51                         (3,281.22)         19,551.29                  

Total Student Activity Fund 412,449.62$                     (20,264.91)$    392,184.71$             

Fruitport Community Schools
Student Activity Summary Report 

Month ending May 31, 2022

Page 15 of 115



July August September October November December January February March April May June Total
Utilities:

Consumers 999.46$         1,019.37$     1,012.98$     1,051.86$     931.48$         1,625.86$     651.53$            1,103.66$     1,215.94$     1,028.53$     762.47$         11,403.14$       

Frontier 46.94$           46.83$           46.83$           46.83$           46.47$           46.47$           46.47$              45.98$           45.98$           45.98$           45.78$           510.56$            

MISEC 26,029.81$   20,219.50$   17,802.29$   24,662.29$   21,237.41$   46,333.64     20,086.33$       43,415.08$   51,701.02$   65,345.89$   51,799.07$   388,632.33$    

Total Utilities 27,076.21$   21,285.70$   18,862.10$   25,760.98$   22,215.36$   48,005.97$   20,784.33$       44,564.72$   52,962.94$   66,420.40$   52,607.32$   -$                  400,546.03$    

Credit Cards:
General Fund 41,753.46$   118,552.16$ 129,618.75$ 113,593.62$ 86,138.79$   55,659.81$   76,512.13$       79,077.95$   95,638.67$   73,148.09$   869,693.43$    

Early Childhood 1,685.50$     1,421.18$     1,565.55$     4,775.53$     1,573.15$     1,845.00$     1,111.67$         8,410.45$     2,846.10$     895.15$         26,129.28$       

Food Service -$               -$               -$               -$               85.05$           59.93$           -$                   -$               -$               -$               144.98$            

Tech/Security Millage 20,152.63$   1,744.82$     997.31$         10,008.17$   2,528.12$     14,529.96$   875.26$            4,429.66$     1,843.97$     136.14$         57,246.04$       

Student Activities 7,160.78$     17,193.28$   9,152.52$     15,655.49$   22,955.18$   17,795.58$   10,797.48$       16,045.68$   19,215.78$   19,548.07$   155,519.84$    

Total Credit Card Charges 70,752.37$   138,911.44$ 141,334.13$ 144,032.81$ 113,280.29$ 89,890.28$   89,296.54$       107,963.74$ 119,544.52$ 93,727.45$   -$               -$                  1,108,733.57$ 

***Credit cards are always a month behind

Credit Card and Utilities Detail
For the month ending May 31, 2022

Page 16 of 115



Orig Bid Change Orders 
Total Revised 

Contract
Fiscal Year 

2017
Fiscal Year 

2018
Fiscal Year 2019 Fiscal Year 2020

Fiscal Year 
2021

Fiscal Year 
2022 YTD

Total Spent

Construction Total ‐ HS 39,814,014.00 2,498,706.00 42,312,720.00     36,863.73         2,965,446.81    18,607,869.58    10,914,209.02   6,635,503.21    4,453,614.43    43,613,506.78    103.07%
FFE ‐ Furniture/fixature/equip 1,299,520.00 0.00 1,299,520.00       ‐  1,370.85            91,217.60            532,345.40         277,291.30       231,784.91       1,134,010.06       87.26%
Alloc. Architect Fees (HS only) + AE Costs 3,113,343.00 0.00 3,113,343.00       1,017,776.57    1,355,075.18    99,774.36            82,429.26           302,749.86       123,845.48       2,981,650.71       95.77%
CM Fee (HS only) 1,386,606.00 87,456.00 1,474,062.00       ‐  101,224.00       655,412.00         377,251.00         231,699.00       135,730.00       1,501,316.00       101.85%
Roofs 0.00 274,532.00 274,532.00           223,177.30       223,177.30          81.29%
Contingency 3,661,732.00 ‐2,586,162.00 1,075,570.00       29.37% ‐ 
TOTAL HS Project 49,275,215.00 0.00 49,549,747.00     1,054,640.30    4,423,116.84    19,454,273.54    11,906,234.68   7,447,243.37    5,168,152.12    49,453,660.85    99.81%

Cost of Issuance ‐ PFM 350,000.00 ‐142,209.00 207,791.00           79,757.78         128,033.77       ‐  ‐  ‐  207,791.55          100.00%

Shettler Elementary  473,840.00 ‐168,913.00 304,927.00           ‐  ‐  86,983.22            160,516.90         10,173.00         23,846.50         281,519.62          92.32%

Beach Elementary  320,393.00 ‐95,534.00 224,859.00           ‐  11,996.00         ‐  15,327.00           3,027.00            151,358.80       181,708.80          80.81%

Edgewood Elementary 228,088.00 0.00 228,088.00           ‐  ‐  53,318.13            46,784.00           ‐  100,102.13          43.89%

Middle School 640,005.00 ‐10,085.00 629,920.00           ‐  ‐  31,341.90            227,640.97         335,245.00       594,227.87          94.33%

Non HS Furniture 0.00 4,113.00 4,113.00               4,112.55            59,196.21         18,669.80         81,978.56            1993.16%

Transportation 270,000.00 1,458,022.00 1,728,022.00       229,330.00       202,930.00       ‐  331,535.00         495,825.00       468,402.00       1,728,022.00       100.00%

State Police Grant Expense 0.00 614,016.00 614,016.00           ‐  ‐  ‐  577,065.95         36,950.00         614,015.95          100.00%

Total Bond 51,557,541.00 1,659,410.00 53,491,483.00     1,363,728.08    4,770,189.16    19,625,916.79    13,265,104.50   8,387,659.58    5,830,429.22    53,243,027.33    99.54%
Estimated Interest Earned (investment) ‐450,000.00 ‐1,421,328.00 (1,871,328.00)      (33,086.56)        (270,225.99)      (1,102,501.63)     (421,207.98)        (23,385.40)        (1,916.01)          (1,852,323.57)     98.98%
State Police Grant (Revenue) 0.00 ‐428,030.00 (428,030.00)         ‐  ‐  ‐  (368,923.28)        (59,107.69)        (428,030.97)         100.00%
VW Reimbursement (103,875.00)      (103,875.00)        
Total Capital Projects Fund 51,107,541.00       ‐189,948.00 51,192,125.00     1,330,641.52    4,499,963.17    18,523,415.16    12,474,973.24   8,201,291.49    5,828,513.21    50,858,797.79    99.35%

Overage (Surplus) (207,459.00)           (122,875.00)        

Project Summary:  2017 Bond Budget Overview
All Work within all buildings

VIII-6

Page 17 of 115



Treasury App Schematic Design 
Fiscal Year 

2021
Fiscal Year 

2022
Total Spent

Athletic Turf 1,548,523.00 2,351,756.00 ‐  41,348.97          41,348.97             1.76%
Track Replacement 314,353.00 750,000.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%
Middle School Natatorium to Gym 1,215,355.00 1,215,355.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%
Total Athletics 3,078,231.00 4,317,111.00 ‐  41,348.97          41,348.97  0.96%

Beach Elementary  352,556.00 352,556.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%
Shettler Elementary 576,532.00 576,532.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%
Edgewood Elementary 100,000.00 25,000.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%
Middle School 1,387,815.00 1,387,815.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%
High School 1,023,954.00 574,074.00 ‐  924,074.00        924,074.00          160.97%
Total Mechanical/Controls/AC 3,440,857.00 2,915,977.00 ‐  924,074.00  924,074.00          31.69%

Overall Contingency 790,912.00 ‐117,531.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

Tower Pinkster Fees 0.00 465,000.00 ‐  148,756.84        148,756.84          31.99%

Technology 0.00 0.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  #DIV/0!

Non HS Furniture/Band 150,000.00 150,000.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

Transportation 500,000.00 200,000.00 ‐  ‐  ‐  0.00%

Cost of Issuance 60,000.00 74,443.00 30,450.00          43,993.60          74,443.60             100.00%

Total Bond 8,020,000.00 8,005,000.00 30,450.00          1,158,173.41    1,188,623.41       14.85%
Estimated Interest Earned (investment) ‐20,000.00 ‐5,000.00 (2.18)  (2,648.21)           (2,650.39)  53.01%

Total Capital Projects Fund 8,000,000.00       8,000,000.00         30,447.82          1,155,525.20    1,185,973.02       14.82%

Overage (Surplus)

Project Summary:  2021 Bond Budget Overview

All Work within all buildings

VIII-7

Page 18 of 115



Personnel Report – June 27, 2022 
 
It is recommended that the following candidates be offered contracts and/or salary 
increases pending final approval from the Board of Education: 
 

Jason Gustin, STEM teacher, Edgewood 

Brenda Hansen, Girls Varsity Golf Coach  

Steven Jablonski, Science Teacher, High School  

Kyle Nielson, Technology Director 

Brian Packard, Girls Varsity Basketball Coach 

Alyson Winton, Preschool Speech-Language Pathologist, ESU 

 
The following staff members will Resign/Retire/Reduce Hours/Transfer:  
 

Colin Brown, Science Teacher, Middle School  

Sarah Engel, Math Teacher, Middle School 

Lynette McCumber, 4th Grade Teacher, Edgewood  

Lauren Moran, Occupational Therapist 

Erica O’Neal, Physical Therapist 

ared Plawski, High School Graduation Advocate, Math Interventionist, and 

Alternative Education Math Teacher 

Kara Radecki, Math Teacher, Middle School 

Courtney Stahl, Principal, Beach Elementary 

 
The following positions are currently posted: 
  

Bus Driver 

Elementary Principal 

Instructional Assistants (3) 

Occupational Therapist 

Speech Language Pathologist, Preschool 

School Psychologist 

Page 19 of 115



Memo 
To: FCS Board of Education 

From: Allison Camp, Curriculum Director 

Date: May 19, 2022 

Re: Recommendation for Hire 

On May 6, Tom Hamilton, Emily Basse, and I interviewed 3 candidates for the open 
STEM position at Edgewood Elementary.  From there, we narrowed the pool down to 2 
candidates who did teaching interviews on May 12.  At the conclusion of the interviews, 
the team decided to hire Jason Gustin as our next STEM teacher for Edgewood. 

Jason has his Bachelor of Arts degree from Grand Valley State University and has 
worked previously for Muskegon Public, Holt Public, and Muskegon Catholic Schools. 
We are excited to have Jason join the FCS team with his wife Jamie who is a 2nd grade 
teacher at Beach! 

Page 20 of 115



Jason David Gustin
1296 Palmer Ave.
Muskegon, MI 49441
Phone: (231) 750-5128
jagustin17@yahoo.com

OBJECTIVE: To interview with Fruitport Community Schools for an upper elementary,
STEM, or middle school science teaching position.

EDUCATION:
Grand Valley State University – Allendale, MI
Bachelor of Arts Degree – April 27, 2001
Major:  Group Science (DX Certification)
Emphasis:  Chemistry
Minor:  Elementary Education

TEACHING EXPERIENCE
*Muskegon Catholic Schools –Fifth Grade Teacher

Muskegon Catholic Elementary School (August 2009 – June 2019)
* Planned, prepared and delivered lesson plans and instructional materials that facilitate student
learning.
* Developed schemes of work, lesson plans and tests that are in accordance with established
procedures.
* Instructed and monitored students in the use of learning materials and equipment.
* Used relevant technology to support and differentiate instruction.
* Managed student behavior in the classroom by establishing and enforcing rules and procedures.
* Maintained discipline in accordance with the rules and disciplinary systems of the school.
* Provided appropriate feedback on work.
* Encouraged and monitored the progress of individual students and used information to adjust
teaching strategies.
* Maintained accurate and complete records of students' progress and development.
* Updated all necessary records accurately and completely as required by laws, district policies
and school regulations.
* Prepared required reports on students and activities.
* Participated in department, school, district and parent meetings.
* Communicated necessary information regularly to students, colleagues and parents regarding
student progress and student needs.
* Established and communicated clear objectives for all learning activities.
* Prepared classroom for class activities.
* Provided a variety of learning materials and resources for use in educational activities.

Page 21 of 115



*Holton Middle School – Eighth Grade Science Teacher
Holton Public School District  (August 2003 – June 2008)

* Taught eighth grade Physical Science benchmarks toward MEAP exam
* Taught eighth grade Earth Science benchmarks toward MERIT exam
* Developed a Forensic Science curriculum for which I received the 2007 Golden Apple Award
from the Muskegon County Bar Association
* Received tenure from Holton Public Schools during 2007 school year
* Part of Holton Middle School Improvement Team
* Contributed in aligning curriculum to current Michigan Science Benchmarks
* Took part in team teaching with middle school teachers

*Steele Middle School – Sixth Grade Science Teacher
Muskegon Public School District  (August 2002 – June 2003)

* Taught sixth grade science as well as sixth grade reading
* Member of parent call committee for sixth grade teachers
* Part of sixth grade team teaching
* Participated in after school tutoring

SUBSTITUTE TEACHING
Newaygo Area Intermediate School District  (September 2001 – June 2002)

* Taught 148 days as a substitute teacher for Hesperia Community Schools
during 2001-2002 school year including a long-term substitute position

* Supervised an after school homework club for St. Clair Elementary School
(January 2002 – February 2002)

* Supervised an after school homework club for Hesperia Middle School
(October 2001 – December 2001)

* Muskegon Area Intermediate School District
(December 2000 – June 2002)

STUDENT TEACHING
Muskegon Public School District  (January 2001 – April 2001)

*Nelson Elementary School – Fourth Grade Classroom

STUDENT ASSISTING
Orchard View Public School District  (August 2000 – December 2000)

*Orchard View Elementary School – First Grade Classroom

ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS
2007 Golden Apple Award Recipient for Forensic Science Class
-7th Grade Girls’ Basketball Coach for Holton Middle School
-8th Grade Boys’ Basketball Coach for Holton Middle School
-7th Grade Boys’ Basketball Coach for Hesperia Middle School
-Middle School Baseball Coach for Muskegon Catholic Central
-Basketball Coach for Muskegon Catholic Central Elementary
Dean’s List – Winter 2000, Fall 1999, and Winter 1998
Bachelor of Arts obtained through basic Spanish Coursework

Page 22 of 115



REFERENCES

Marie Jones Robert Bridges
Teacher President
Oakridge Elementary Cathedral High School
120 N. Park Street 5255 E 56TH Street
Muskegon, MI 49442 Indianapolis, IN 46226
Phone: (231) 788-7662(231) 755-2201 X3540 Phone: (317) 968-7367
mjones@oakridgeschools.net rbridges@gocathedral.com

Kathi Kissel Katie Welch
Teacher Teacher
Muskegon Catholic Central Sacred Heart Academy
1145 W. Laketon Ave. 1200 Dayton St. SW
Muskegon, MI 49441 Grand Rapids, MI 49504
Phone: (231) 755-2201 Phone: (616) 459-0948
kkissel@muskegoncatholic.org kwelch@shgr.org

8897 Holton Duck Lake Rd.
Holton, Michigan 49425
231-821-1700
Fax: 231-821-17248897 Holton Duck Lake Rd.
Holton, Michigan 49425
231-821-17ax: 231-821-1724

Page 23 of 115



6/8/22, 11:31 AM Fruitport Community Schools Mail - Recommendation to hire

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=2bbb17f567&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1735002844033713164%7Cmsg-f%3A1735002844033… 1/1

Clarke, Maribeth <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>

Recommendation to hire 
1 message

Morehouse, Jonny <jmorehouse@fruitportschools.net> Tue, Jun 7, 2022 at 2:46 PM
To: Jason Kennedy <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>, Lauren Chesney <lchesney@fruitportschools.net>, "Rogers, Robert"
<rrogers@fruitportschools.net>, "Clarke, Maribeth" <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>

I am recommending the hire of Brenda Hansen, for our girls varsity golf position.  Brenda is bringing in a newly formed
passion for the game.  She is growing in the sport, but has a desire to continue to grow in golf.  As a coach, she comes in
as a veteran, who has coached softball at Oakridge for many years.  She understands the importance a coach has on an
individual and the positive impact she can make in all areas of the student's life.  The other piece that I really like about
Brenda is, she is a staff member here in the high school.  She will be able to help recruit girls from our high school to go
out for the team.  She will also be able to be here to help with any academic, discipline, or other needs that arise, that
having a staff member as a coach are helpful for.  Attached below is her resume.

 Brenda Hansen Girls Golf.pdf

--  
Jonny Morehouse
Athletic Director
Fruitport Community Schools
231-865-4035

Page 24 of 115

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1JjNXUzSCW0BHHzuUEFC086i_8N6LrZCb/view?usp=drive_web


Page 25 of 115



Page 26 of 115



Page 27 of 115



Page 28 of 115



 

Memo 
To: FCS Board of Education 

From: Allison Camp, Curriculum Director 

Date: May 18, 2022 

Re: Recommendation for Hire 

  

  

Over the course of 2 separate days, Lauren Chesney, Rob Rogers, Steve Roup and 
myself interviewed candidates for our open science position at the high school.  From 
there 3 candidates were invited back for teaching interviews where Steven Jablonski 
rose to the top.  His excitement for teaching the subject and his desire to make local 
connections to the topics in his classroom are 2 of the main reasons that I am 
recommending him for hire. 

Steve has his Bachelor of Science degree in Biology from Grand Valley State University.  
He became a teacher by working through the W.K. Kellogg/Woodrow Wilson 
Foundation Teaching Fellowship.   

Page 29 of 115



Steven Jablonski 
W.K. Kellogg / Woodrow Wilson Michigan Teaching Fellow, 

GVSU Annis Water Resources Institute Science Instructor 

 

 

2966 Dawes Rd 

Muskegon, MI 49441 

616-402-2116 

srjablonski@gmail.com 

 

1 of 2 
 

TEACHING EXPERIENCE 

 

SCIENCE INSTRUCTOR         Mar 2022 - Present 
     GVSU Annis Water Resources Institute, Muskegon, MI     

 Conduct educational programs aboard GVSU/AWRI’s research vessels and special 
events for the Water Resources Outreach Education Program. 

 Teach aquatic science using hands-on, place-based learning experience to grades 4-
12, college, and adult learners. 

 Adapt instruction to meet AWRI curriculum guidelines and ensure meaningful 

learning experiences regardless of special circumstances and weather conditions. 
 Coordinate with the science instruction team for scheduling, vessel lab set up, and 

maintenance of educational supplies and materials. 
 Ensure safety in a learning environment with unusual hazards through learner 

engagement, situational awareness, and strict adherence to protocols. 
 
 
SUBSTITUTE TEACHER           Apr 2011 – Jun 2012, Feb 2022 - Present 
     EduStaff, Professional Employment Services Group 
     Mona Shores, Muskegon, Wesley School, Grand Haven schools, MI 

 Provide substitute teaching services in a broad range of classrooms including industrial 
arts, advanced sciences, and special needs with severe multiple impairments. 

 Deliver lessons that I developed or pre-planned lessons in accordance with teachers’ 
directions and school needs. 

 Am trusted to deliver regular lessons including lab activities in science classrooms where I 

work regularly. 
 Foster student engagement and ensure productive learning environments with effective 

classroom management. 
 
 

W. K. KELLOGG / WOODROW WILSON FOUNDATION         Aug 2011 – Jun 2012 
MICHIGAN TEACHING FELLOW 

Muskegon High School, Muskegon, MI 
 Observed and student taught biology and honors biology for a full school year (over 8 

months as lead teacher) in a high-needs urban high school with students of highly diverse 
racial, cultural, and socioeconomic backgrounds. 

 Planned and facilitated technical, hands-on labs including DNA gel electrophoresis and 

GFP-plasmid E. coli DNA transformation labs. 
 Coordinated with my mentor teacher and ELA department faculty to introduce biology 

content-related literacy projects. 
 Planned and implemented units specifically aligned with Michigan state content standards. 
 Effectively managed classrooms in a challenging environment by building relationships 

with students, providing engaging lessons, communicating with parents, and modeling 
consistently high standards of conduct. 

 Differentiated assessment and instructional methods to enable learners with a very broad 
spectrum of abilities to achieve learning targets. 

 Assistant-taught and occasionally lead-taught Anatomy/Physiology. 

Page 30 of 115



Steven Jablonski 

2 of 2 

ADVANCED STRATEGIC TUTOR                   Jun 2011 – Jul 2011 
TRIO – Upward Bound, Grand Valley State University, Allendale, MI 

 Taught learning strategies, science vocabulary, and test-taking skills to minority high-
needs high school students. 

 Utilized and taught Strategic Tutoring methods from the University of Kansas Strategic 
Instruction Model. 

 Developed instruction and assessments and documented student performance in 

accordance with TRIO – Upward Bound program standards. 
 

 

EDUCATION 

 

W. K. KELLOGG / WOODROW WILSON FOUNDATION MICHIGAN TEACHING 

FELLOWSHIP – GRADUATE PROGRAM IN SECONDARY INSTRUCTION AND CURRICULUM  
     Grand Valley State University - Allendale, MI  
     Michigan teaching certification with DA-endorsement pending - expected Jun 2022 

     Currently certified as a MI substitute teacher 
 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN BIOLOGY 
     Grand Valley State University - Allendale, MI 
 

BROADER EXPERIENCE 

 

RETAIL STORE MANAGER – TEAM MANAGER              Aug 2012 – Nov 2021 

Dunham's Sports, Muskegon, Kalamazoo, Portage, and Holland, MI       
 Directed daily operations of a high volume ($8 million/yr) sporting goods store. 
 Performed HR operations including hiring, counseling, and terminations. 

 Trained and directed a staff of 20-30 young adult employees. 
 Maintained high clientele and employee satisfaction through strong communication and 

conflict-resolution skills. 
 Raised store performance to the top of the company through product knowledge, staff 

training, and courteous and respectful sales practices. 

 
YOUTH PROGRAM MENTOR / RUNNING COACH          Aug 2017 – Oct 2017 

Muskegon Mona Shores Schools Total Trek Quest team, Muskegon, MI 
 Mentored 3rd-5th grade students in health and life skills using prepared curriculum. 
 Coached youth runners with little or no experience to complete a 5km race. 

 Safely led off campus group runs with 10-15 young students. 
 

PRESENTOR AND EVENT VOLUNTEER         Spring 2011 
GVSU Regional Math and Science Center, Allendale, MI 
 Facilitated hands-on science activities explaining water cycle and waste water treatment 

to children and adolescents at Super Science Saturday.  
 Assisted event operation for the Michigan Regional Science Olympiad. 

 
VOLUNTEER CLASSROOM ASSISTANT             Jan 2011 - Jun 2011 

Grand Haven Area Public Schools, Grand Haven, MI 

 Supported daily operations of a 7th grade science classroom. 
 Aided teacher with classroom management and lab lesson preparations and 

implementation. 
 Chaperoned student activities such as museum trips and overnight camps. 

 
Page 31 of 115



KKyyllee  NNiieellsseenn  
223 Californai Ave.      North Muskegon, MI 49445      Phone: (616) 240-9985      nielsen.kyle@gmail.com 

Certifications 

MCITP:EA 
CCNA Route/Switch 
CCNA Wireless 
CWNA 

MCSA 2012 

Security+ 
Network+ 
CWSE 
ACCP 

Key Skills 

Network & Systems 

Engineering 

Supervisory, 
Management, & 
Mentoring  

Planning and 

Deploying Wireless 
Networks 

Server Virtualization 

Authentication & 
Access Control  

Systems Monitoring 

Disaster Recovery  

MS Exchange /Email 

Systems Management 

Customer Service 

 

EEXXPPEERRIIEENNCCEEDD  IITT  PPRROOFFEESSSSIIOONNAALL    
Certified Professional in Enterprise Systems Administration 

Systems and network engineer whose qualifications include a degree in 
Information Security; Microsoft Certified Enterprise Administrator, Cisco Certified 

in two specializations and detailed knowledge of Microsoft server technologies, 
Cisco products and IT best practices. Over 17 years of experience in the creation 
and deployment of IT systems solutions, protecting networks, systems 
administration and planning for diverse and complex systems.  
 

Technology Summary 

Systems 
Technologies: 

Cisco Prime Infrastructure, Cisco ISE, Firewalls, F5 Load 
Balancers, Active Directory; MS Exchange/ SQL/Hyper-V 

Systems: Cisco switches/routers, VoIP, WLC, SANs, VMware 

Networking: LAN and WAN administration, featuring Cisco switches and 

routers 

Software: MS Office, Windows, Chrome OS, SCVMM, WDS, Dell Open 
Manage, HP SIM, EqualLogic SAN Manager, SolarWinds 

Experience 

Grand Valley State University Solutions Architect, April 2012-Present 
Allendale, MI 
 

Baker College,                      Networking/Security Instructor, 2009-2017 

Muskegon, MI 
 
ACS, A Xerox Company      Sr. Exchange Administrator, Dec.2011-March 2012 
Tallahassee ,FL 
 
Whitehall District 

Schools, Whitehall, MI 
 
Craig’s Cruisers 
Spring Lake, MI 

    Network Administrator, 2005-Dec. 2011 

 
 
   General Manager, April 2000- June 2010 

  

Page 32 of 115



 
LinkedIn Profile  

 

Education 

Baker College, 
Muskegon, MI 

B.S. in Information 

Technology and 
Security 2009 

 

Muskegon Community 
College, Muskegon, 
MI 

A.A.S in Computer 
Network 
Administration 2005 

 

Project Highlights: 

⚫ Wireless network and security: Designed and implemented wireless 

network transitions with Cisco ISE authentication servers Cisco Unified 

Wireless Access.  Continually evaluating and expanding wireless 
infrastructure. Implementation and maintenance on over 3,200 access points 
and eight WLCs. 

⚫ Networks: Planned and deployed new LAN’s/WLAN’s for multiple buildings 

with over 1,400 data ports and 200 access points. Maintain a switching 
infrastructure with over 900 switches. 

⚫ Systems Migration: Planned, designed, and migrated server infrastructure 
from Windows Server 2003 to a virtualized Windows Server 2008 R2 

environment.  

⚫ Exchange E-Mail: Part of a team that manages e-mail systems transition of 
over 35 agencies on disparate email messaging solutions to a private could 
solution, featuring 30+ Exchange 2010 servers, Enterprise Vault, SendMail 

Message Hygiene scanning, and on-demand encryption.  

⚫ Client Migration: Planned and implemented client OS refresh from Windows 

XP to Windows 7 for 950 workstations. Developed new GPO’s and deployment 
strategies utilizing Altiris for zero and light touch deployments. 

⚫ Virtualization: Moved server infrastructure from 20 physical servers running 
on HP and Dell hardware to a 6 node Hyper-V high-availably cluster with an 
iSCSI EqualLogic SAN and DR replication partner in remote site. 

⚫ Security: Modernized outdated Acceptable Use Policy for Staff and students. 

Implemented a multi-tier web filter system using LDAP for proxy settings.  
Implemented secure wireless access for staff, students, and guests using 
separate SSIDs and VLANs for traffic separation.  

⚫ Infrastructure: Team leader on managing a complex, private cloud 

Exchange Organization with 100,000 + planed mailboxes. Organized security 
infrastructure upgrades (e.g., firewall/VPN upgrades, physical security, and E-
Mail filtering/retention devices. 

⚫ Soft Skills: Adaptable to change, learn new systems quickly, end user 

training at all levels. Customer service: managed 35 employees and 

conducted human resources activities, budgeting and daily revenue reports. 

⚫ Peripheral Devices: Mobile phones, Network Multi-Function 
Printers/Scanner, Data Backup devices, Network DVR surveillance, Key Fob 

access controls, and A/V systems, SMART Boards and projectors. 

Page 33 of 115

http://www.linkedin.com/pub/kyle-nielsen/9/22/289/


6/6/22, 11:18 AM Fruitport Community Schools Mail - Recommendation to hire for varsity girls basketball

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=2bbb17f567&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1734370817242247027%7Cmsg-f%3A1734370817242… 1/1

Clarke, Maribeth <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>

Recommendation to hire for varsity girls basketball 
1 message

Morehouse, Jonny <jmorehouse@fruitportschools.net> Tue, May 31, 2022 at 3:21 PM
To: Lauren Chesney <lchesney@fruitportschools.net>, "Rogers, Robert" <rrogers@fruitportschools.net>, Jason Kennedy
<jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>, "Clarke, Maribeth" <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>

Good afternoon, I would like to recommend the hire of Brian Packard as our next girls varsity basketball head coach.  He
comes nominated by the girls basketball hiring committee and with some new innovative ways to get girls out for
basketball and to improve our program from the youth on up.  I look forward to working with Brian in all areas, to help turn
around our girls basketball program.  His passion for the game, his solid grasp on teaching fundamentals, and his ability
to motivate and build the culture of our girls program are just a few of the many positives to having Brian coach our girls.  

Attached below is his resume.  

 Brian Packard Varsity Girls Basketball.pdf

--  
Jonny Morehouse
Athletic Director
Fruitport Community Schools
231-865-4035

Page 34 of 115

https://drive.google.com/file/d/19QMyJwtmS_14uzmIgZecTzFp_-PqjVUA/view?usp=drive_web


Page 35 of 115



Page 36 of 115



 
Fruitport Community Schools 
Memo 
 

To:   Jason Kennedy      
From:   Laura Gavin  
Date: 6/6/2022     
CC:   Maribeth Clarke, Katie Shawl, Jenny Ferels, Mark Mesbergen 
Re:  Recommendation for SLP Hire 

 
 
It is with great pleasure that I recommend the hiring of Alyson Winton for the position of 
Preschool Speech-Language Pathologist for the Eastern Service Unit.  She was the top 
candidate for this position from all members of the interview team.  Her references were all very 
positive and spoke strongly of her character, willingness to learn, and organization.     
 
We interviewed five potential candidates that were all qualified for the position.  Alyson rose to 
the top with her thoughtfulness while answering interview questions and her personality that 
seemed to be a great fit for our team.  She will be joining our team after graduating from Calvin 
University.   
 
She will start her new position this fall and will likely be placed in our early childhood programs 
in Orchard View and Ravenna.   
 
 

Page 37 of 115



_______________Alyson Winton_______________ 
Phone Number: (989) 858-6843      Email: alysonm.winton@gmail.com 

Education_____________________________________________________________________________ 
MASTER OF ARTS | EXPECTED IN AUGUST OF 2022 | CALVIN UNIVERSITY 

• Speech-Language Pathology 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE | MAY 2021 | CALVIN UNIVERSITY 
• Speech-Language Pathology and Audiology 

Clinical Experience_________________________________________________________________ 
SLP STUDENT CLINICIAN | ROCKFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS |  
JANUARY 2022- MARCH 2022 

• Executed formal assessments via the iPad-based testing system Q-interactive, such as the Goldman 
Fristoe Test of Articulation 3rd Edition and the Clinical Evaluation of Language Fundamentals 
Preschool. 

• Delivered treatment targeting fluency deficits, such as stuttering, to children ranging from 
kindergarten to fifth grade. 

• Facilitated AAC intervention using a variety of high-tech and low-tech devices, including eye-gaze, the 
iPad applications; Proloquo2go, LAMP Words for Life, and paper images. 

• Worked with individuals with a variety of diagnoses, including Autism, Down syndrome, Childhood 
Apraxia of Speech, Cerebral Palsy, ADHD, etc. 

• Experienced completion of monthly Medicaid billing. 
• Completed assessments and documentation stating eligibility recommendations. 

SLP STUDENT CLINICIAN | FOREST HILLS PUBLIC SCHOOLS |  
AUGUST 2021- NOVEMBER 2021 

• Led push-in or pull-out articulation and language lessons for groups of 2-6 students. 
• Educated aids and teachers on speech and language strategies and materials to implement in the 

classroom in order to encourage generalization across settings. 
• Documented progress accurately through Service Capture for SOAP notes, IEPs, and Progress 

Reports. 
• Led and participated in IEP and eligibility meetings. 
• Collaborated with other professionals, including OT, social worker, PT, etc., in order to plan effective 

treatment sessions to target multiple areas of concern for students. 
• Implemented client-centered therapy using a consultation model with high school students. 
• Provided transition support and education to high school students for job applications. 

SLP STUDENT CLINICIAN | CALVIN UNIVERSITY PEDIATRIC CLINIC |  
SEPTEMBER 2020- AUGUST 2021 

• Evaluated and analyzed client’s strengths and weaknesses using informal measures and formal 
protocols, including the Clinical Evaluation of Language Fundamentals 5th Edition, the Preschool 
Language Scale 5th Edition, the Rosetti Infant-Toddler Language Scale, and the LinguiSystems 
Articulation Test. 

• Completed oral motor examinations to assess the structure and function of structures important for 
speech and swallowing. 

• Assessed hearing status using an audiometer and an otoscope. 
• Communicated the purpose of treatment and reviewed reports with parents and caregivers. 
• Gained knowledge of methods for researching evidence-based practices. 
• Utilized evidence-based treatment approaches to target articulation and language goals, such as Drill Play, 

the Cycles Approach, and Milieu Teaching. 

• Planned and led sessions via the teletherapy format. 

SLP STUDENT CLINICIAN | CALVIN UNIVERSITY ADULT NEUROREHABILITATION CLINIC | 

Page 38 of 115

mailto:alysonm.winton@gmail.com


SEPTEMBER 2020- AUGUST 2021 
• Built a solid understanding of individual patient's strengths and weaknesses through formal and 

informal assessment of speech and hearing, including the Western Aphasia Battery, the Boston 
Diagnostic Aphasia Examination, the Cognitive Linguistic Quick Test, and the Montreal Cognitive 
Assessment. 

• Documented developments and regressions in patients' speech, making treatment adjustments 
based on latest information. 

• Provided various forms of treatment for different aphasia types, cognitive, and motor speech 
deficits, including Oral Reading for Language in Aphasia, Melodic Intonation Therapy, Errorless 
Learning, AAC intervention, Phonation Resistance Training Exercises, Be Clear for Dysarthria, and 
Spaced Retrieval. 

• Worked with individuals and their families to develop goals and objectives to improve 
communication and quality of life. 

Related Experience_________________________________________________________________ 
Full-time and part-time childcare worker • Children’s summer program group leader • Secretary • 

Professional Memberships and Certifications_________________________________ 
CPR Certified • Member of NSSLHA • Electronic medical record experience •  

Page 39 of 115



Colin Brown
3875 Ellen St.
Muskegon, MI 49444

June 14, 2022

Jason Kennedy
Superintendent
Fruitport Community Schools
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd
Fruitport, MI 49415

Dear Mr. Kennedy,

Please accept this letter as my formal resignation from my position as a science teacher at Fruitport Middle
School.

Thank you for your support and leadership. I appreciate the opportunities and training that I have received
during my time with the district and will have fond memories of Fruitport Community Schools. I wish you the
best in this upcoming year.

Sincerely,

Colin Brown

Page 40 of 115



6/22/22, 4:34 PM Fruitport Community Schools Mail - Re: Resignation

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=2bbb17f567&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1735617612006217869%7Cmsg-f%3A1735617612006… 1/1

Clarke, Maribeth <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>

Re: Resignation
1 message

Camp, Allison <acamp@fruitportschools.net> Tue, Jun 14, 2022 at 9:38 AM
To: "Engel, Sarah" <sengel@fruitportschools.net>
Cc: Jason Kennedy <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>, Monte Kelly <mkelly@fruitportschools.net>, Trista Stingle
<tstingle@fruitportschools.net>, Jennifer Ferels <jferels@fruitportschools.net>, Mark Mesbergen
<mmesbergen@fruitportschools.net>, Maribeth Clarke <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>, Jeff Grossenbacher
<jgrossenbacher@fruitportschools.net>

Hi Sarah

Thank you so much for all of the time and energy that you have given to Fruitport.  I wish you the best in your next
adventures with your family.

Allison

On Fri, Jun 10, 2022 at 1:24 PM Engel, Sarah <sengel@fruitportschools.net> wrote: 
Hello,
 
Please accept this email as a formal notice of my resignation. I’ve been at the Middle School for four years now, and
while I’ve enjoyed my time, my life has recently taken a major shift. I wont be returning, and will instead be staying
home with my new baby. 
Please let me know if there is anything I can do to make the next year start smoothly. 
 
Thank you,
--  
Sarah Engel 
6th grade math teacher
Fruitport Middle School
231-865-3128 ext. 3118

--  
Allison Camp 
Director of Curriculum and Instruction 
Fruitport Community Schools 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd. 
Fruitport, MI  49415 
231.865.4003

Page 41 of 115

mailto:sengel@fruitportschools.net
https://www.google.com/maps/search/Fruitport+Community+Schools+3255+E.+Pontaluna+Rd.+Fruitport,+MI+%C2%A049415?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/Fruitport+Community+Schools+3255+E.+Pontaluna+Rd.+Fruitport,+MI+%C2%A049415?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/Fruitport+Community+Schools+3255+E.+Pontaluna+Rd.+Fruitport,+MI+%C2%A049415?entry=gmail&source=g


Page 42 of 115



Lauren Moran
9522 Whispering Sands Dr.
West Olive, MI
49460

6/14/2022

Eastern Service Unit

Laura,

Please accept this letter as my formal resignation from the occupational therapist position for
the 2022-2023 school year.

This is an extremely bittersweet letter to write. At this time, I feel inclined to make a transition
so that I am better able to support my family, be closer to home, and have more options for
schooling and childcare. I have nothing but kind words and positivity while reflecting on my
experience. With the guidance and mentorship I have received from my teammates, this
position has been extremely rewarding, and has allowed me to grow and develop as a clinician. I
will be forever grateful for the opportunity to work with such an amazing group. I have been
honored to work with such devoted individuals and am honestly inspired daily by the passion,
grace, communication, professionalism, humor, and unique individuality each person brings to
their role.

This area is completely blessed to have you all. I am forever indebted to you and this
organization for this amazing opportunity. Please feel free to reach out if there is any way I can
help you in the future.

Sincerely,  
Lauren Moran

Page 43 of 115



6/22/2022

Laura Gavin,

Please accept this letter as my formal resignation from the Physical Therapist position for the
2022-2023 school year.

I am extremely grateful for the opportunity to have worked with such wonderful kiddos, staff
members, and faculty alike. It is very bittersweet to leave, but for an opportunity for my family to
live where I grew up and live by my support system is such an important opportunity. I am
already sad to be leaving my kiddos I work with, and had such a wonderful experience in getting
to know these kiddos and their families, and will miss them. I have really grown during this
experience, and have been inspired by the professionalism, humor, and wonderful passion that
the staff members bring to these students.

Please don’t hesitate to reach out to me should you have any questions, concerns, or want me
to help support a new hire. Thank you for this amazing experience and opportunity!

Sincerely,

Erica O’Neal
Physical Therapist

Page 44 of 115



Fruitport Community Schools 
Jared Plawski 

Graduation Advocate/Math Teacher/Math Interventionist 
3255 E. Pontaluna Road 

Fruitport, MI 49415 
Ph 231.865.4100 

Fax 231.865.3393 
www.fruitportschools.net 

 
 
 
June, 8th 2022 

 

Dear Jason, 
 
It is my regret to inform you that I tender my resignation for the position of High School 
Graduation Advocate, Alternative Education Math Teacher, and Math Inventionist . It has 
been a wonderful experience for me as a whole at Fruitport High School. I want to thank 
you for the leadership since you took the helm at FCS. Fruitport schools are in great hands. 
Thank you. 
 
 
Yours truly, 
Jared Plawski 
 
 

 
 

Page 45 of 115

http://www.fruitportschools.net/


5/24/22, 8:23 AM Fruitport Community Schools Mail - Re: Next School Year

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=2bbb17f567&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1733710097234563793%7Cmsg-f%3A1733710097234… 1/1

Clarke, Maribeth <mclarke@fruitportschools.net>

Re: Next School Year 
1 message

Camp, Allison <acamp@fruitportschools.net> Tue, May 24, 2022 at 8:19 AM
To: "Radecki, Kara" <kradecki@fruitportschools.net>
Cc: Monte Kelly <mkelly@fruitportschools.net>, Trista Stingle <tstingle@fruitportschools.net>, Julie Kolbe
<jkolbe@fruitportschools.net>, Jason Kennedy <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>, Maribeth Clarke
<mclarke@fruitportschools.net>, Mark Mesbergen <mmesbergen@fruitportschools.net>

Hi Kara

Thank you so much for letting us know.  I know you have worked very hard these last 4 years to hone your craft as a
teacher and I wish you all the best in your next adventures.  

Allison

On Mon, May 23, 2022 at 3:14 PM Radecki, Kara <kradecki@fruitportschools.net> wrote: 
Hello,
Please accept this email as a formal notice of my resignation. This is the end of my 4th year of teaching and I have
truly enjoyed my time here with the staff at Fruitport Middle School. I am sorry to inform you that I am not returning next
year as I am looking at opportunities outside of education. Please let me know what I can do for a smooth transition for
next year. 
 
Thank you again for all of your support.
 
--  
Kara Radecki
7th and 8th Grade Math Teacher
Fruitport Middle School
Phone: 231-865-3128  ext. 3202
radecki.weebly.com

--  
Allison Camp 
Director of Curriculum and Instruction 
Fruitport Community Schools 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd. 
Fruitport, MI  49415 
231.865.4003

Page 46 of 115

mailto:kradecki@fruitportschools.net
http://radecki.weebly.com/
https://www.google.com/maps/search/Fruitport+Community+Schools+3255+E.+Pontaluna+Rd.+Fruitport,+MI+%C2%A049415?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/Fruitport+Community+Schools+3255+E.+Pontaluna+Rd.+Fruitport,+MI+%C2%A049415?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/Fruitport+Community+Schools+3255+E.+Pontaluna+Rd.+Fruitport,+MI+%C2%A049415?entry=gmail&source=g


Page 47 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # IX-1 
 
 
From: Jason J. Kennedy 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
Athletic Student-Parent Handbook 
 

 
 

 
Background Information:  
The Athletic Department is requesting that the Board of Education approve the Student-Parent Handbook for the 
2022-2023 school year. The only changes made to the handbook include changes to reflect changes in date from 
the current year to next school year. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact:  
None 
 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 

Approve the 2022-2023 Athletic Student-Parent Handbook, as presented. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 

 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 

Page 48 of 115



Page 49 of 115



Page 50 of 115



Page 51 of 115



6/22/2022

Laura Gavin,

Please accept this letter as my formal resignation from the Physical Therapist position for the
2022-2023 school year.

I am extremely grateful for the opportunity to have worked with such wonderful kiddos, staff
members, and faculty alike. It is very bittersweet to leave, but for an opportunity for my family to
live where I grew up and live by my support system is such an important opportunity. I am
already sad to be leaving my kiddos I work with, and had such a wonderful experience in getting
to know these kiddos and their families, and will miss them. I have really grown during this
experience, and have been inspired by the professionalism, humor, and wonderful passion that
the staff members bring to these students.

Please don’t hesitate to reach out to me should you have any questions, concerns, or want me
to help support a new hire. Thank you for this amazing experience and opportunity!

Sincerely,

Erica O’Neal
Physical Therapist

Page 52 of 115



Page 53 of 115



Page 54 of 115



Page 55 of 115



Page 56 of 115



Page 57 of 115



Page 58 of 115



Page 59 of 115



Page 60 of 115



Page 61 of 115



Page 62 of 115



Page 63 of 115



Page 64 of 115



Page 65 of 115



Page 66 of 115



Page 67 of 115



Page 68 of 115



Page 69 of 115



Page 70 of 115



Page 71 of 115



Page 72 of 115



Page 73 of 115



Page 74 of 115



Page 75 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business  
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
To: Board of Education            Attachment # IX-2 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 

 
 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Withdrawal from the Adair Lawsuit against the State of Michigan 
 

 
 
Background Information: 
The Adair Lawsuit was initiated in 2010 to challenge the State of Michigan with regard to data collection 
mandates.  It was contended that these mandates were in violation of the 1978 Headlee Amendment to the 
State Constitution which prohibited unfunded mandates.  This lawsuit included over 450 Michigan School 
Districts plaintiffs and is led by legal counsel at the firm of Secrest and Wardle.  The cost of bringing the 
lawsuit has been split by the plaintiff districts.  The lawsuit has failed at many court levels including the 
Michigan Supreme Court, but the attorneys have persisted in pursuing additional litigation.   
 
If the lawsuit were to eventually prevail, it is the belief of many, including Fruitport Community Schools 
Administration, that the state would settle the lawsuit by reducing funding in other categories in the State 
Aid Budget.  For this reason and the lack of success to date in the courts, administration is recommending 
that Fruitport Community Schools withdraw as a plaintiff in the lawsuit.   
 

  
 
Financial Impact: 
$500 savings each year to the general fund. 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 

 To withdraw as a plaintiff in the Adair Lawsuit, effective immediately, and authorize the superintendent to 
take all appropriate actions to effect the withdrawal. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 
Page 76 of 115



Business and Finance Committee 
Monday, June 20, 2022 
11:30 a.m., Superintendent’s Office 
Meeting Minutes 
 
Attendance: Dave Hazekamp, Elroy Buckner, Kris Cole, Jason Kennedy, Jessica Wiseman, and 
Mark Mesbergen 
 

1. North Muskegon Business Services 
Jason gave an update on a proposed extension with North Muskegon for business 
services. There will be a recommendation at the upcoming board meeting. 
 

2. Section 31o Allocation 
Mark gave an update on Section 31o as Fruitport was awarded over $225,000 for the 
current fiscal year. Section 31o is a reimbursement grant for mental health-related staff.  
 

3. Estimated State and Federal Grant Allocations 
Jason and Mark gave an update on the estimated allocations for our three Title grants. 
Fruitport’s estimated allocations are less than the previous year and Central Office is 
making plans based on the allocations.  
 

4. 2022 Final Budget Amendments and 2023 Original Budget Proposal 
Mark gave an update on the final budget amendments for all the funds. Mark presented 
the reasons for the changes in the current budget. The General Fund is projected to finish 
with a surplus for the current fiscal year. Mark also presented the 2023 Original Budgets 
for all of the funds. He shared the assumptions that were used. 
 

5. L-4029 
Mark presented the L-4029 and the allocation report that will be on the upcoming board 
meeting. This is the report that the district will give each township and counties.  
 

6. Other – PLE for 2023 
Every year, the district needs to complete a food service report called PLE. The PLE 
report is a report that determines if a district needs to increase meal prices to charge 
students and staff. The State of Michigan gave any district with a positive fund balance 
the option to not increase the price and that is the recommendation from the food service 
team.  
 
 
 

 

Page 77 of 115



7. Other - Engraver 
Mark presented a recommendation to purchase an engraver for a class at the high school. 
The engraver is going to be used for a marketing/entrepreneurship class for our 
Alternative High School. Our high school store will also be using it; thus, the school store 
will also be funding a portion of this equipment. The district has received multiple 
quotes.  
 

8. Other – Adair  
Mark and Jason presented a recommendation/resolution that requests Fruitport to 
withdraw from a lawsuit that many districts have been apart for a long time. The lawsuit 
was in regards to unfunded mandates. The resolution will be on the upcoming board 
meeting.   
 

Meeting adjourned at 12:28 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted by Mark Mesbergen 
 
 
 

Page 78 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # X-2 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Approval of Budget Appropriations Act of the 2021-22 General Fund. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
Budgets are reviewed periodically as funding information becomes available, and as events occur during the 
fiscal year.  Budgets are amended to align with projected revenues and expenditures. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
Provides for proper authority to expend these funds. 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approval of general fund budget amendment as presented in attached document.  Roll Call Vote… 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
  
 

 

Page 79 of 115



RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be the GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT of the Fruitport Community

Schools district for the fiscal year 2021-22, an ACT to make appropriations; to provide for the expenditure of the

appropriations; and to provide for the disposition of all income received by the Fruitport Community Schools district.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance estimated to be available

for appropriations in the GENERAL FUND of the Fruitport Community Schools district for fiscal year 2021-22

is as follows:

Code #

REVENUES: Original Budget   Amendment Proposed Final

100 Local 3,464,350$                     3,666,450$                    3,813,652$                   
300 State 23,162,870$                   24,612,720$                  25,108,977$                 
400 Federal 2,940,232$                     3,406,735$                    3,381,251$                   

    500-600 Incoming Transfers 1,494,510$                     1,438,821$                    1,456,711$                   
Total Revenues 31,061,962$                   33,124,726$                  33,760,591$                 

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction -
110      Basic Program 13,041,329$                   13,295,224$                  13,471,329$                 
120      Added Needs 5,861,648$                     6,026,716$                    5,997,364$                   
130      Adult & Continuing 115,065$                         93,969$                         92,171$                        

Total Instruction: 19,018,042$                   19,415,909$                  19,560,864$                 

Support Services -
210      Pupil 3,123,731$                     3,344,912$                    3,260,734$                   
220      Instructional Staff 1,207,473$                     1,453,860$                    1,474,707$                   
230      General Administration 485,585$                         489,124$                       494,831$                      
240      School/Building Administration 1,830,488$                     1,872,254$                    1,880,514$                   
250      Business 588,784$                         619,587$                       556,977$                      
260      Operations & Maintenance of Plant 2,746,632$                     3,139,364$                    3,242,210$                   
270      Transportation 1,599,982$                     1,742,622$                    1,974,994$                   

    280-290      Other 458,562$                         460,808$                       465,626$                      
293      Athletics 570,845$                         602,918$                       633,072$                      

Total Support Services: 12,612,082$                   13,725,449$                  13,983,665$                 

300      Community Service 47,175$                           53,808$                         69,519$                        
    400-600      Outgoing Transfer & Fund Modifications 64,379$                           63,149$                         62,916$                        

Total Expenditures 31,741,678$                   33,258,315$                  33,676,964$                 

Excess Expenditures Over Revenues (679,716)$                       (133,589)$                      83,627$                        

Page 80 of 115



Original Budget   Amendment Proposed Final
Fund Balance Information
Fund Balance 7/1/21
     Unassigned 3,970,515$                     4,370,892$                    4,370,892$                   
     Assigned 32,877$                           33,097$                         33,097$                        

Fund Balance Impact Surplus/Deficit
     Unassigned (682,516)$                       (136,389)$                      67,367$                        
     Assigned 2,800$                             2,800$                            16,260$                        

Projected Ending Fund Balance 2021-22
     Unassigned 3,287,999$                     4,234,503$                    12.7% 4,438,259$                   13.2%
     Assigned 35,677$                           35,897$                         49,357$                        

FURTHER RESOLVED, that no Board of Education member or employee of the school
district shall expend any funds or obligate the expenditure of any funds except pursuant to 
appropriations made by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary
policy statement hitherto adopted.  Changes in the amount appropriated shall require
approval by the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby charged with general
supervision of the execution of the budget adopted by the Board and shall hold the
department heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities within the amounts
appropriated by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary policy
statement hitherto adopted by the Board of Education.
This act is to take effect on June 27, 2022.

MOTION by
SUPPORT by
ROLL CALL VOTE:

Motion __________________________

__________________________________
President, Fruitport Board of Education

Page 81 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # X-3 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Approval of the 2021-22 School Service Fund (Early Childhood & Preschool, Food Service Program and 
Technology and Security Millage) Budget Amendment for 2021-2022. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
Budgets are reviewed periodically as funding information becomes available, and as events occur during the 
fiscal year.  Budgets are amended to align with projected revenues and expenditures. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
Provides for proper authority to expend these funds. 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approval of 2021-2022 School Service Fund budget amendment as presented in the attached document.  
Roll Call Vote… 
 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 

Page 82 of 115



Code # Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act. Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act. Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act.

100 Local 38,000$            714,000$          5,000$              250,000$          41,000$           754,000$         5,000$                470,000$        54,250$         754,000$         11,000$         440,000$       
300 State 46,801$            -$                  -$                  -$                  49,948$           -$                  -$                    -$                49,948$         -$                  -$               -$                
400 Federal 1,483,796$      -$                  -$                  -$                  1,513,796$      -$                  -$                    -$                1,814,492$    311,355$         -$               -$                

500-600 Incoming Transfers -$                  -$                  520,000$          -$                  -$                  -$                  545,000$           -$                -$               -$                  545,000$       -$                
1,568,597$      714,000$          525,000$          250,000$          1,604,744$      754,000$         550,000$           470,000$        1,918,690$    1,065,355$      556,000$       440,000$       

Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act. Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act. Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act.

220 Instructional Staff -$                  -$                  310,730$          -$                  -$                  -$                  406,700$           -$                -$               -$                  773,200$       -$                
250 Business -$                  500$                 -$                  -$                  -$                  500$                 -$                    -$                -$               300$                 -$               -$                
260 Operations & Maintenance 635$                 850$                 -$                  -$                  -$                  650$                 -$                    -$                -$               800$                 -$               -$                
270 Transportation 4,000$              5,850$              -$                  -$                  4,000$              5,850$              -$                    -$                1,000$           5,850$              -$               -$                

280-290 Other 1,430,653$      -$                  37,310$            240,000$          1,572,896$      -$                  34,067$              500,000$        1,576,505$    -$                  34,067$         475,000$       
300 Community Service -$                  683,716$          -$                  -$                  -$                  753,536$         -$                    -$                -$               910,242$         -$               -$                
400 Building Improvements -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  2,000$                -$                -$               -$                  3,000$           -$                
600 Fund Modifications 50,000$            25,000$            -$                  -$                  50,000$           25,000$           -$                    -$                60,000$         25,000$           -$               -$                

1,485,288$      715,916$          348,040$          240,000$          1,626,896$      785,536$         442,767$           500,000$        1,637,505$    942,192$         810,267$       475,000$       

Proposed Final

Proposed Final

Amendment

Amendment

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the amount designated below of the total available to appropriate in the 
SCHOOL SERVICE FUND is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance estimated to be available for 
appropriation in the SCHOOL SERVICE FUND of Fruitport Community Schools for fiscal year 2021-22 be 
adopted as follows:

Original Budget

Original Budget

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Total Expenditures

REVENUES:

Page 83 of 115



Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act. Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act. Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act.

Fund Balance 7/1/21
     Committed fund balance

Undesignated 450,556$          278,220$          247,180$          414,842$          526,813$         289,276$         284,158$           422,742$        526,813$       289,276$         284,158$       422,742$       

450,556$          278,220$          247,180$          414,842$          526,813$         289,276$         284,158$           422,742$        526,813$       289,276$         284,158$       422,742$       

         Surplus/Deficit 83,309$            (1,916)$             176,960$          10,000$            (22,152)$          (31,536)$          107,233$           (30,000)$         281,185$       123,163$         (254,267)$      (35,000)$        

533,865$          276,304$          424,140$          424,842$          504,661$         257,740$         391,391$           392,742$        807,998$       412,439$         29,891$         387,742$       

MOTION by

SUPPORT by

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Motion:

President, Fruitport Board of Education

Proposed FinalAmendment

Fund Balance Information

FURTHER RESOLVED, that no Board of Education member or employee of the school district shall expend any funds or obligate the 
expenditure of any funds except pursuant to appropriations made by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary policy 
statement hitherto adopted.  Changes in the amount appropriated shall require approval by the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby charged with general supervision of the execution of the budget adopted 
by the Board and shall hold the department heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities within the amounts 
appropriated by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary policy statement hitherto adopted by the Board of 
Education. This act is to take effect on February 21, 2022.

Total Beginning Fund Balance

Projected Ending Fund Balance           
2021-22

Original Budget

Page 84 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date:    June 27, 2022 

  
 

To: Board of Education            Attachment # X-4 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 

 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
Approval of Budget Appropriations Act of the 2022-23 General Fund. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information:   
The Board of Education is required by law to adopt the General Fund budget for the ensuing fiscal year 
beginning July 1. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact:   
Provides for proper authorization for the expenditure of funds (see attached resolution). 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:    
Adoption of Budget Appropriations Act for 2022-23 General Fund as presented in the attached resolution. 
Roll Call Vote… 
 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 

Page 85 of 115



RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be the GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT of the Fruitport Community

Schools district for the fiscal year 2022-23, an ACT to make appropriations; to provide for the expenditure of the

appropriations; and to provide for the disposition of all income received by the Fruitport Community Schools district.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance estimated to be available

for appropriations in the GENERAL FUND of the Fruitport Community Schools district for fiscal year 2022-23

is as follows:

Code #

REVENUES: Original Budget

100 Local 3,519,950$                      
300 State 26,258,139$                    
400 Federal 3,742,004$                      

    500-600 Incoming Transfers 1,485,821$                      
Total Revenues 35,005,914$                    

EXPENDITURES:

Instruction -
110      Basic Program 14,535,115$                    
120      Added Needs 6,110,102$                      
130      Adult & Continuing 89,221$                            

Total Instruction: 20,734,438$                    

Support Services -
210      Pupil 3,502,317$                      
220      Instructional Staff 1,513,194$                      
230      General Administration 555,325$                         
240      School/Building Administration 1,948,218$                      
250      Business 629,263$                         
260      Operations & Maintenance of Plant 3,087,430$                      
270      Transportation 2,042,745$                      

    280-290      Other 474,031$                         
293      Athletics 688,383$                         

Total Support Services: 14,440,906$                    

300      Community Service 105,629$                         
    400-600      Outgoing Transfer & Fund Modifications 63,149$                            

Total Expenditures 35,344,122$                    

Excess Expenditures Over Revenues (338,208)$                        

Page 86 of 115



Original Budget
Fund Balance Information
Fund Balance 7/1/22
     Unassigned 4,438,259$                      
     Assigned 49,357$                            

Fund Balance Impact Surplus/Deficit
     Unassigned (341,008)$                        
     Assigned 2,800$                              

Projected Ending Fund Balance 2022-23
     Unassigned 4,097,251$                      11.6%
     Assigned 52,157$                            

FURTHER RESOLVED, that no Board of Education member or employee of the school
district shall expend any funds or obligate the expenditure of any funds except pursuant to 
appropriations made by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary
policy statement hitherto adopted.  Changes in the amount appropriated shall require
approval by the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby charged with general
supervision of the execution of the budget adopted by the Board and shall hold the
department heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities within the amounts
appropriated by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary policy
statement hitherto adopted by the Board of Education.
This act is to take effect on June 27, 2022.

MOTION by
SUPPORT by
ROLL CALL VOTE:

Motion __________________________

__________________________________
President, Fruitport Board of Education

Page 87 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date:    June 27, 2022 

  
 

To:  Board of Education                              Attachment # X-5 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 

 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
Approval of Budget Appropriations Act of the 2022-23 School Service Fund (Early Childhood & Preschool 
Programs, Food Service Program, Technology and Security Millage Fund, and Fiduciary Accounts). 
 

 
 

 
Background Information:   
The Board of Education is required by law to adopt the School Service Fund budgets for the ensuing fiscal 
year beginning July 1. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact:   
Provides for proper authorization for the expenditure of funds (see attached resolution). 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:    
Adoption of the 2022-23 School Service Fund as presented in the attached resolutions. Roll Call Vote… 
 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
  
 

 

Page 88 of 115



Code # Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act.

100 Local 303,000$          784,500$          7,500$               465,000$          
300 State 49,948$            -$                  -$                   -$                   
400 Federal 1,008,796$      -$                  -$                   -$                   

500-600 Incoming Transfers -$                  -$                  545,000$          -$                   
1,361,744$      784,500$          552,500$          465,000$          

Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act.

220 Instructional Staff -$                  -$                  411,700$          -$                   
250 Business -$                  300$                  -$                   -$                   
260 Operations & Maintenance -$                  800$                  -$                   -$                   
270 Transportation 2,000$              5,850$              -$                   -$                   

280-290 Other 1,523,596$      -$                  34,205$            485,000$          
300 Community Service -$                  823,188$          -$                   -$                   
400 Building Improvements -$                  -$                  3,000$               -$                   
600 Fund Modifications 50,000$            25,000$            -$                   -$                   

1,575,596$      855,138$          448,905$          485,000$          

RESOLVED, that the total revenues and unappropriated fund balance estimated to be available for 
appropriation in the SCHOOL SERVICE FUND of Fruitport Community Schools for fiscal year 2022-23 be 
adopted as follows:

Original Budget

REVENUES:

Total Revenues

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the amount designated below of the total available to appropriate in the 
SCHOOL SERVICE FUND is hereby appropriated in the amounts and for the purposes set forth below:

Original Budget

EXPENDITURES:

Total Expenditures

Page 89 of 115



Food Service ECC Tech Millage Fiduciary Act.

Fund Balance 7/1/22
     Committed fund balance

Undesignated 807,998$          412,439$          29,891$            387,742$          

807,998$          412,439$          29,891$            387,742$          

         Surplus/Deficit (213,852)$        (70,638)$           103,595$          (20,000)$           

594,146$          341,801$          133,486$          367,742$          

MOTION by

SUPPORT by

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Motion:

President, Fruitport Board of Education

Original Budget

Fund Balance Information

Total Beginning Fund Balance

Projected Ending Fund Balance           
2022-23

FURTHER RESOLVED, that no Board of Education member or employee of the school district shall expend any funds or obligate the 
expenditure of any funds except pursuant to appropriations made by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary policy 
statement hitherto adopted.  Changes in the amount appropriated shall require approval by the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent is hereby charged with general supervision of the execution of the budget adopted 
by the Board and shall hold the department heads responsible for performance of their responsibilities within the amounts 
appropriated by the Board of Education and in keeping with the budgetary policy statement hitherto adopted by the Board of 
Education. This act is to take effect on June 27, 2022.

Page 90 of 115



   AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 
 

To: Board of Education            Attachment # X-6 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 

 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
L-4029 for FY 2023 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
Every year the business office has to complete the L-4029, which is a form that tells the county and 
townships how much and when to levy our property taxes. Our financial advisor tells me how to split our 
6.9 debt mills to pay for each debt each year which is shown on the attached allocation report. The L-4029 
follows the board action taken in December with levying summer taxes in Fruitport and Spring Lake 
townships.  
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
$0 to the district as we are paying the hard caps. The employees will save money. 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the L-4029 for the fiscal year 2023. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
  

 

Page 91 of 115



100% 
Summer 100% Winter

Crockery Township W
Spring Lake Township S
Fruitport Township S
Sullivan Township W

Summer Winter
General Fund Operating -                 18.0000       
2010 Voted Debt -                 1.2000         
2016 Voted Debt -                 4.6000         
2021 Voted Debt -                 1.1000         
Totals -                 24.9000       

Summer Winter
General Fund Operating 18.0000        -                
2010 Voted Debt 1.2000          -                
2016 Voted Debt 4.6000          -                
2021 Voted Debt 1.1000          -                
Totals 24.9000        -                

Crockery Township & Sullivan Township

Fruitport Township & Spring Lake Township

Fruitport Community Schools
L-4029 Allocation Report

2022 Levy

Page 92 of 115



Page 93 of 115



Page 94 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Business and Finance   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 
 

To: Board of Education                             Attachment # X-7 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 

 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Purchase an Engraver 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
The engraver is going to be used for a marketing/entrepreneurship class for our Alternative High School. 
Kathy Steudle-Schwander is going to teach the class and partner along with the school store to sell those 
items that the students make. Our high school store will also be using it; thus, the school store will also be 
funding a portion of this equipment. The district has included multiple quotes which is included in the 
packet.  
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
$22,982 paid out of two different funding sources. $15,982 paid out of the General Fund ($10,000 coming 
from the Vocational Funds), and $7,000 High School Store (Trust and Agency)  
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the purchase of the engraver from Midwest via Quote 2115. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg  
 

 

Page 95 of 115



Page 96 of 115



Scordato Sales International Inc
407 N. Village Ave.
Rockville Centre, NY
11570-2329
+1 5167639369
contact@scordatosales.com

Quote

ADDRESS

Kathy Steudle-Schwander
Fruitport High School
357 North 5th Street
Fruitport, MI  49415 USA

SHIP TO

Kathy Steudle-Schwander
Fruitport High School
357 North 5th Street
Fruitport, MI  49415 USA

QUOTE # DATE

S-ULS-FHS-0622 06/07/2022

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

VLS 3.60DT
Desktop laser - 12" x 24" processing area; includes lens kit and air 
assist

1 14,316.00 14,316.00

ULR-30
30 Watt laser cartridge

1 6,551.00 6,551.00

Downdraft Cutting Table (VLS3.60DT)
12" x 24" Honeycomb Cutting Table

1 744.00 744.00

Rotary Fixture (VLS3.60DT)
Designed for VLS 3.60DT Desktop

1 1,934.00 1,934.00

Bofa Exhaust
Hose kit included

1 2,380.00 2,380.00

Installation and Training 1 1,200.00 1,200.00

SUBTOTAL 27,125.00

SHIPPING 600.00
TOTAL $27,725.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Page 97 of 115



7845 E. Paradise Lane   
Scottsdale, Arizona  85260

TEL: 480-483-1214  FAX: 480-452-1101

QUOTATION

Quotation Date: June 6, 2022

42821Quotation Number:

Expiration Date: July 6, 2022

The purchase and sale of the products reflected in this quotation shall be governed by the 
terms and conditions contained within this quotation and in the Universal Laser Systems, Inc. 
Terms and Conditions of Sale attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

Universal Laser Systems, Inc. Terms and Conditions will apply and shall prevail 
regardless of any terms and conditions submitted by Customer subsequent to the 
date of this quote, including, but not limited to, purchases of products, services, 
parts, or accessories.

Customer’s submittal of a written or verbal Purchase Order for quoted qoods or services will 
serve as acknowledgement and acceptance of Universal Laser System’s Terms and Conditions.  
Universal’s acceptance of Customer’s Purchase Order, or Universal’s registration as a supplier 
at Customer’s request shall not constitute Universal’s acceptance of Customer’s Terms and 
Conditions which are contrary to Universal’s Terms and Conditions of sale.

Kathy Steudle-Schwander

Fruitport High School

Fruitport MI,    

Prepared for:

Phone: 231-865-3101 ext 6129

Chuck BosnosContact:

Quotation # 42821 Page 1 of 6Page 98 of 115



VLS3.60DT System 

Quick Change™ Laser Cartridge Description

Included Features and Options

$39,968.00Total Customer Price for VLS3.60DT Including Options:

Patented, air-cooled CO2  laser cartridge with integrated red dot pointer, cross platform 
compatibility (can be used on any Universal Laser Systems Platform), Permalign™  no 
alignment installation for easy upgradeabilty.

Prices are "Ex-Works" from Universal Laser Systems factory in Scottsdale Arizona.   
Shipping and insurance will be extra, billed at cost.

One day installation by Universal Laser is included.

Notes

(for a complete description of platform features, please visit our website at www.ulsinc.com)

VLS3.60DT Laser System Quotation

VLS3.60DT Laser System

VLS Desktop 2.0 Final Focusing Lens Kit (Lens Assembly and Focusing Tool)

ULR-50 Laser Source

Power Cord, C13, 10 Amp Right Angle UL/CSA

VLS3 Color Kit, Red

VLS 2.0 Coaxial Gas Assist Attachment

VLS3 Flow-Through Cutting Table

Power Cord, C13, 10 Amp Right Angle UL/CSA

VLS Filter Kit

VLS Desktop Air Cleaner Cart, 110V

Power Cord, C13, 10 Amp Right Angle UL/CSA

Domestic System Installation / Training

Quotation # 42821 Page 2 of 6Page 99 of 115



Facility Requirements 
Computer 

Electrical Power – Main Unit 

Air Filtration Unit Exhaust 

USB2 2.0 High Speed Connection, 2 GHz 

Processor, 2 GB of RAM, 60 GB Hard Drive 

110V 10A or 220V/5A; 50/60 Hz, Single Phase 
110V 10A or 220V/5A; 50/60 Hz, Single Phase 

110V 10A or 220V/5A; 50/60 Hz, Single Phase 
110V 10A or 220V/5A; 50/60 Hz, Single Phase 

External exhausting required unless Computer 
Controlled Air Cleaner/Cart is used. 

(Contact factory for exhaust blower recommendations.) 

Delivery and Shipment 

Shipment to be made 4 to 6 weeks ARO (at receipt of order).  Actual delivery date is 
contingent on availability of products and will be determined at the time of placement 
of order.  All shipments are EXW-Factory Scottsdale, Arizona, freight prepay-add.  

Please notify ULS or shipper if lift gate is needed.  Freight quotes are provided one 
week prior to shipment or upon request. 

Payment Terms 
25% down payment required within 7 days of purchase order placement.  Balance due 
prior to shipment.  If leasing, please inform us of the source. Wire transfer or 
irrevocable letter of credit confirmed by U.S. bank is acceptable. All payments must be 

in U.S. Dollars. Wire transfer funds to the following: 
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, Phoenix, Arizona 
ABA Routing:  122100024 

For Credit to:  Universal Laser Systems, Inc. 
Account Number: 02924-0569 
Swift Code: CHASUS33 

Warranty (See attached warranty statement for full details) 

Laser System Platform - 12 months warranty 
Laser Source - 24 months warranty 
Extended warranties available at additional cost 

Thank you for your interest in Universal Laser Systems Inc. We are looking forward to 
a long-term relationship with you. Please reference the quotation number when 
placing your order.  If you have any further questions, please call me at 800-859-
7033.  

This Quotation shall remain in effect for thirty (30) days from the date set forth above 
(unless earlier revoked by ULS), at which time it shall automatically expire. 

Quote Acceptance: 

ULS Representative  Date  Customer Signature  Date 

Quotation # 42821 Page 3 of 6Page 100 of 115



Universal Laser Systems Limited Warranty 
Universal Laser Systems, Inc. (“ULS”) warrants to the original end user (the “Customer”) of the laser system products (the “Products”) listed on the packing slip 

accompanying the Products that, during the applicable Warranty Period, the Products will be free from manufacturing defects (materials and workmanship), under normal 

and proper use pursuant to ULS user and service documentation. Each Product is in one of the following Product Categories, ea ch of which has a different Warranty 

Period: 

Product Category Applicable Warranty Period 

 Laser Source 25 months from date of shipment 
 System Platform 13 months from date of shipment 
 Accessories 12 months from date of shipment [13 months from date of shipment for Accessories included 

as part of the Customer’s original purchase of a Laser Source and System Platform] 
 Consumables 90 days from date of shipment 

The final section of this Limited Warranty contains a non-exhaustive list of Products within various Product Categories. 

This Limited Warranty (a) extends only to, and may only be exercised by, the Customer, and (b) terminates automatically upon the earlier of (i) the Customer’s 
transfer of ownership or possession of the Products to another person or entity, or (ii) the end of the applicable Warranty Period. 

To exercise this Limited Warranty, the Customer must notify ULS of the defect via email (at support@ulsinc.com), promptly after discovery of the defect and 
before the end of the applicable Warranty Period. Please include the following information in the email: (a) description of Product and defect; (b) contact 
information (telephone and physical address); and (c) if the Customer purchased the Product from a third party sales representative or channel partner, the name 
of the third party, date of purchase, Serial No. (if applicable) and a purchase receipt or other original documentation of the Customer’s purchase of the Product 
from the third party. If ULS or its authorized warranty service provider determines that the Product is defective and that the conditions of this Limited Warranty 
are satisfied, ULS will, at its sole option and discretion, either (i) repair or replace the defective Product at no charge to the Customer (ULS may, in its sole 
discretion, require the Customer to pay directly, or reimburse ULS for, any or all freight and shipping charges), or (ii) refund a pro rata portion of the purchase 
price paid by the Customer for the Product based on the percentage of the applicable Warranty Period remaining at the time the defect is reported. ULS may, at 
its discretion, use refurbished parts to repair or replace a defective Product. The warranty on any Product repaired or replaced by ULS will extend through the 
end of the original applicable Warranty Period plus any time elapsed between ULS’s receipt of the defective Product from the Customer and ULS’s shipment of 
the repaired or replacement Product to the Customer. 

This Limited Warranty is void if ULS or its authorized warranty service provider determines that damage to, or failure of, a Product was, in whole or in part, 
caused by or otherwise attributable to (a) installation or use of non-ULS parts or components, (b) tampering with non-user serviceable components (as identified 
by notification labels or as described in the ULS user documentation), (c) any use of the Products for unintended or unauthorized application, including, but 
not limited to, use in medical or surgical applications, medical device manufacturing or any similar process or application requiring approval, testing or 
certification by the United States Food and Drug Administration or any other governmental authority, (d) an unauthorized act or omission of any person or 
entity other than ULS or its authorized warranty service provider, including, but not limited to, lack of supervision of use, accident, misuse, abuse (including, 
but not limited to, incorrect voltages, power surges, fires, water damage, improper or insufficient ventilation, failure to follow ULS-provided installation and 
operating instructions, and “acts of God”) and service or modification of the Product by a person or entity other than ULS or its authorized warranty service 
provider, or (e) incompatibility of any third-party software used in connection with the Product. 

EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS LIMITED WARRANTY, ULS IS PROVIDING THE PRODUCTS “AS IS.” TO THE MAXIMUM 

EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ULS SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS 
(WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN) WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE (WHETHER OR NOT ULS KNOWS, HAS REASON TO KNOW, HAS 
BEEN ADVISED OR IS OTHERWISE IN FACT AWARE OF ANY SUCH PURPOSE) OR CONDITIONS OF TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT OR 
NONINTERFERENCE, WHETHER ALLEGED TO ARISE BY OPERATION OF LAW, BY REASON OF CUSTOM OR USAGE IN THE TRADE OR BY 
COURSE OF DEALING. 

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE ENTIRE LIABILITY OF ULS, AND THE EXCLUSIVE AND SOLE REMEDY OF THE 
CUSTOMER, FOR ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES AND DAMAGES OF ANY NATURE RELATED TO THE PRODUCTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY 
CAUSE OF ACTION BASED ON WARRANTY, CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, PATENT OR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT OR 
MISAPPROPRIATION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, WILL BE LIMITED TO THE REMEDIES SET FORTH IN THIS LIMITED WARRANTY. IN NO EVENT 
WILL THE CUMULATIVE LIABILITY OF ULS EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE PAID BY THE CUSTOMER FOR THE PRODUCTS. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WILL ULS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, OR FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF SAVINGS, 
LOSS OF DATA OR LOSS OF USE DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER ULS WAS AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE. IN 
NO EVENT WILL ULS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM BROUGHT MORE THAN ONE (1) YEAR AFTER THE CAUSE OF ACTION ACCRUED. THE FOREGOING 
LIMITATIONS WILL APPLY REGARDLESS OF ANY FAILURE OF THE ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY. BECAUSE SOME STATES DO 
NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, THE ABOVE LIMITATION MAY NOT 
APPLY TO YOU. 

This Limited Warranty grants the Customer specific legal rights. The Customer may also have other legal rights, which vary from state to state or foreign territories. 
Because some states or foreign territories do not permit certain exclusions or warranty disclaimers, limitations on the duration of an implied warranty, or limitation 
of liability for consequential or incidental damages some or all of the disclaimers or limitations set forth above may not apply. If any provision of this Limited 
Warranty is held to be unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions will be in no way affected or impaired. 

The following is a non-exhaustive list of Products within various Product Categories: 

System Platform: includes all Accessories installed at time of purchase of ULS laser system 

Accessories: UAC-4000 and UAC-2000 (excluding filter media); Rotary; Air Compressor; Back Sweep; Air Assist; Air Cleaner Cart (excluding filter media); 
Pin Table; Cones; Automation Interface; Dual Head; SuperSpeed; Traveling Exhaust; Embedded PC; Pass Through Class 1 and 4 
Consumables: Optics; Mirrors; Belts – X, Y and Z Axis; Drive Gears – X, Y and Z Axis; Bearings – X and Y Axis; Pulleys – X and Y Axis; Idlers – X and Y 
Axis; Filter Media; Gaskets; Top Door Pressure Cylinders; Cutting Table Honeycomb Insert; 9 Volt Battery; Fire Suppression Tanks 
 
 
 
Effective as of October 2015 
 

Quotation # 42821 Page 4 of 6Page 101 of 115



Universal Laser Systems Terms and Conditions of Sale 
1. Definitions. 

(a)   “ULS” shall mean Universal Laser Systems, Inc., an Arizona 
corporation. 
(b)   “Quotation” shall incorporate the ULS sales quotation together with 
these Terms and Conditions of Sale. 
(c)   “Products” shall mean the laser system and products described in 
the Quotation. 
(d)   “Standard Products” shall mean any products listed on the 
company’s current price list as of the date of quotation.  
(e)   “Special Order Products” shall mean any products not considered 
Standard Products as defined in 1(d).  
(f)   “Contract Price” shall mean the purchase price including applicable 
taxes for the Products, as set forth in the Quotation.  
(g)   “Customer” shall mean the party identified as such in the Quotation 
and refers only to the original purchaser of the Products. 
(h)  "ULS Software" means any software or other computer program 
incorporated or embedded in the Products. 

2. Scope. 
(a)   IF THIS QUOTATION IS DEEMED TO BE AN OFFER BY ULS TO SELL 
THE PRODUCTS TO CUSTOMER, CUSTOMER’S ACCEPTANCE OF THIS 
QUOTATION IS EXPRESSLY LIMITED TO THESE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF SALE.  ANY ADDITIONAL AND/OR CONFLICTING 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ANY PURCHASE ORDER, 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OR OTHER DOCUMENT ISSUED OR PROVIDED 
BY CUSTOMER ARE HEREBY SPECIFICALLY REJECTED UNLESS 
EXPRESSLY ACCEPTED IN WRITING BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF 
ULS. 
(b)   IF THIS QUOTATION IS DEEMED TO BE A RESPONSE TO AN OFFER 
MADE BY CUSTOMER TO PURCHASE THE PRODUCTS, (i) THIS 
QUOTATION SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE A COUNTER OFFER, AND 
(ii) ULS’S ACCEPTANCE OF SUCH OFFER IS EXPRESSLY CONDITIONAL 
ON CUSTOMER’S ASSENT TO ANY ADDITIONAL AND/OR CONFLICTING 
TERMS IN THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE. 
(c)   In the absence of Customer’s written acceptance or 
acknowledgement of this Quotation, Customer’s payment of all or an y 
part of the Contract Price shall constitute Customer’s acceptance of this 
Quotation. 
(d)   This Quotation constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the sale and delivery of the Products to Customer and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and 
understandings not incorporated herein by reference, whether written or 
oral, express or implied. 

3. Payment Terms.  Payment terms must be approved prior to the 
acceptance of order by ULS.  Customer has the option of applying for  
payment terms or securing other payment options including: 

(a) Net 30 Days. Subject to ULS Credit Approval Guidelines.  
Exceptions require ULS Management’s approval;  

(b) Payment In Advance (PIA). 25% of Standard Product price due 
upon order placement.  Balance of system price due prior to shipment to 
customer.  Exceptions require ULS Management’s approval;  

(c) Special Order Products (PIA). Orders for Special Order 
Products require a non-refundable deposit of 40% of total order price due 
upon order placement; 

(d) Third Party Financing. Financing party (leasing company, etc.) 
is subject to ULS Credit Approval Guidelines.  Advance payment 
requirement will be waived if financing party provides executed 
Memorandum of Understanding detailing customer’s intention to lease 
ordered system(s).  Exceptions require ULS Management’s approval.   

Acceptable forms of payment include company or personal check 
(subject to bank verification); wire transfer; money order; irrevocable 
letter of credit; any of the following credit cards: Visa, Mastercard, 
Discover Card or American Express; or combination of any of the 
previous mentioned forms of payment as approved by ULS.  Customer 
bears the cost of any wire transfer or letter of credit fees.   

Interest shall accrue on any amounts not timely paid by Customer at 
a rate equal to the lesser of (i) one and one-half percent (1-1/2 %) per 
month, and (ii) the maximum rate permitted by applicable law.  ULS may 
at its sole discretion change the terms of payment and/or credit at any 
time upon written notice to Customer.  In the event that any proceeding is 
brought by or against Customer under any bankruptcy or insolvency law, 
ULS will ship any order to Customer C.O.D. or cancel any outstanding 
order and receive reimbursement from Customer for all costs and 
expenses incurred by ULS in connection with such cancellation.  

4. Order Cancellations.  Order cancellation of Standard Products 
by customer is subject to a 15% cancellation fee.  Any exceptions to the 
foregoing require ULS Management’s approval. 

5. Taxes.  The Contract Price is exclusive of future sales, 
transaction privilege, revenue and excise taxes, import duties and other 
taxes and fees applicable to the Products or the manufacture or sale 
thereof.  To the extent applicable, such taxes and fees shall be invoiced 
to and paid by Customer unless Customer timely provides ULS with a 
valid tax exemption certificate. 

6. Delivery; Title; Risk of Loss.  All Products shall be delivered 
EXW (Ex works) ULS’ facility in Scottsdale, Arizona. Customer shall be 
responsible for all shipping, insurance, delivery and related 
transportation charges.  Customer shall notify ULS or shipper in writing 
in advance if a liftgate is needed.  The estimated shipment date for the 
Products is set forth in this Quotation.  ULS’ liability as to risk of loss of 
the Products shall cease upon ULS’ delivery of the Products, in saleable 
condition, to the carrier.  ULS may exercise its own discretion to 
determine the method of shipment to be used.   

7. Acceptance; Rejection; Revocation.  Customer’s right to reject 
nonconforming Products shall terminate ten (10) business days after 
Customer’s receipt of the Products.  If, within such time period, 
Customer fails to notify ULS in writing of its rejection of nonconforming 
Products and reasons substantiating same, Customer shall be deemed to 
have accepted such Products.  Customer shall have the right to revoke 
acceptance of nonconforming Products only if (i)  the nonconformity 
substantially impairs the value of the Products to Customer, (ii)  the 
nonconformity was neither discovered nor reasonably discoverable prior 
to Customer’s acceptance of the Products, and (iii)  Customer notifies 
ULS in writing of the nonconformity within five (5) business days after 
the date the nonconformity is discovered or was first reasonably 
discoverable.  The parties agree that the time periods set forth in this 
Section 7 for rejection and revocation of acceptance are reasonable.  

8. Intellectual Property.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that 
(i) the ULS Software, in its source code form, contains valuable trade 
secrets that belong to ULS, and (ii) except for the limited right to operate 
the ULS Software solely to use the Products for their intended purposes, 
nothing in this Quotation shall be deemed to convey to Customer any 
right, title or interest in or to the ULS Software or any other intellectual 
property of ULS.  Customer shall not (i) reverse engineer, decompile, 
disassemble or otherwise translate any part of the ULS Software or 
permit or authorize any third party to do so, or (ii) use, copy or 
commercially exploit any concepts, ideas or techniques embodied in the 
ULS Software that are proprietary to the ULS Software or that constitute 
ULS trade secrets. 

9. Security Interest.  If the Contract Price is not paid in full prior to 
delivery of the Products to Customer, Customer agrees to grant to ULS a 
purchase money security interest in the Products.  Such security interest 
shall take effect as of the date of delivery of the Products and shall 
remain in effect until Customer’s payment in full of the Contract Price.  
Customer agrees (i) that ULS is authorized to file and record financing 
statements as necessary to perfect such security interest, and (ii)  to take 
all actions reasonably requested by ULS to evidence and perfect such 
security interest. 

10. Excusable Delay.  ULS shall not be liable to Customer for 
nonperformance or delays in its performance under this Quotation due to 
causes beyond its reasonable control including, without limitation, acts 
of God, wars, riots, terrorist attacks, strikes or other labor disputes, fires, 
storms, floods, earthquakes, shortages of labor or materials, production 
difficulties, transportation embargoes and acts of any government or 
agency thereof.  ULS shall notify Customer in writing of  any such event 
or circumstance within a reasonable period after becoming aware of it.  

11. Limited Warranty; Disclaimer; Limitation of Liability.  All 
warranties pertaining to the Products are as set forth in the Universal 
Laser System Limited Warranty.  EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE 
UNIVERSAL LASER SYSTEMS LIMITED WARRANTY ATTACHED 
HERETO, ULS IS PROVIDING THE PRODUCTS TO CUSTOMER “AS IS” 
AND ULS SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS OR REPRESENTATIONS (WHETHER 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN) WITH RESPECT TO THE 
PRODUCTS INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE.  THE LIABILITY OF ULS TO CUSTOMER IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE PRODUCTS IS LIMITED AS SET FORTH IN THE UNIVERSAL 
LASER SYSTEMS LIMITED WARRANTY.  ULS FURTHER DISCLAIMS ANY 
KNOWLEDGE OF, OR REASON FOR KNOWLEDGE OF, ANY GENERAL 
OR PARTICULAR NEEDS OF CUSTOMER WITH RESPECT TO THE 
PRODUCTS OR OF ANY LOSS THAT COULD RESULT THEREFROM.  
WARNING:  UNIVERSAL LASER SYSTEMS PRODUCTS ARE NOT 
DESIGNED, TESTED, INTENDED OR AUTHORIZED FOR USE IN ANY 
MEDICAL APPLICATIONS, SURGICAL APPLICATIONS, MEDICAL DEVICE  

Quotation # 42821 Page 5 of 6Page 102 of 115



 
MANUFACTURING, OR ANY SIMILAR PROCEDURE OR PROCESS 
REQUIRING APPROVAL, TESTING, OR CERTIFICATION BY THE UNITED 
STATES FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION OR OTHER SIMILAR 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES.  SHOULD THE BUYER USE UNIVERSAL 
LASER SYSTEMS PRODUCTS FOR ANY SUCH UNINTENDED OR 
UNAUTHORIZED APPLICATION, ALL WARRANTIES REGARDING THE 
UNIVERSAL LASER SYSTEMS PRODUCTS SHALL BE NULL AND VOID.  
FURTHER, THE BUYER SHALL HAVE NO REMEDY AGAINST UNIVERSAL 
LASER SYSTEMS AND ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, SUBSIDIARIES, 
AFFILIATES AND DISTRIBUTORS FOR, AND THE BUYER SHALL 
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THOSE PARTIES HARMLESS AGAINST, ANY 
AND ALL CLAIMS, COSTS, DAMAGES, EXPENSES AND REASONABLE 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES ARISING OUT OF, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY 
CLAIM ASSOCIATED WITH SUCH UNINTENDED OR UNAUTHORIZED 
USE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY CLAIM BASED ON 
WARRANTY (EXPRESS OR IMPLIED), CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING 
ACTIVE, PASSIVE, OR IMPUTED NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY, 
PATENT OR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OF 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. 

12. Indemnity.  Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold ULS 
harmless for, from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and 
liabilities (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees) (“Losses”) 
arising from or relating to (i) Customer’s use or treatment of the Products 
in a manner other than as contemplated by ULS-provided operating 
instructions, or (ii) any service of, or modification to, the Products that is 
not performed by ULS or an authorized representative of ULS; provided, 
however, that Customer’s indemnity obligations under this Section  12 
shall not extend to Losses that are directly attributable to ULS’ gross 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

13. Waiver of Additional Remedies.  Customer hereby waives, to 
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any right and remedies 
available to it under Article 2 of the Uniform Commercial Code, except to 
the extent that such rights and remedies are specifically set forth in this 
Quotation. 

14. Governing Law; Venue; Jurisdiction.  This Quotation shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Arizona.  Customer agrees that, at ULS’ election, all actions and 
proceedings arising in connection with this Quotation or the parties’ 
respective rights and obligations hereunder shall be litigated in courts, 
and Customer hereby consents to the jurisdiction of any state or federal 
court located in Maricopa County, Arizona.  Customer submits to the 
personal jurisdiction of any state or federal court located in Maricopa 
County, Arizona. 

15. Notices.  All notices and other communications permitted or 
required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and sent to the address 
of the applicable party specified in this Quotation via fax, expedited 
delivery service, certified mail with a copy also sent expedited delivery 
service, certified mail with proof of delivery or email and shall be deemed 
given when received.  Either party will notify of change of address for 
receipt of notices, communications and payments.  

16. Binding Agreement; Assignment; Modification.  This Quotation 
shall be binding upon and enforceable by the parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns.  Customer shall not assign any of its 
rights, or delegate any of its obligations, under this Quotation without  the 
prior written consent of ULS.  No modification of any part of this 
Quotation shall be binding upon the parties unless approved in writing 
and signed by Customer and a duly authorized officer of ULS.  

17. Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of, or default under, this 
Quotation or failure to insist on strict performance under this Quotation 
shall affect the right of either party to enforce such provision or to exercise 
any right or remedy in the event of any other default. 

18. Severability.  If any portion of this Quotation is declared 
unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the enforceability of the 
remainder of this Quotation.  If the scope of any obligation is too broad to 
permit enforcement to its full extent, such obligation shall be enforced to the 
maximum extent permitted by law. 

19. Survival.  The provisions of Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 
14, 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19 of this Quotation shall survive Customer’s receipt of 
the Products and payment. 
 
 

Quotation # 42821 Page 6 of 6Page 103 of 115



 
Personnel Committee  

Monday, June 20, 2022 
4:30 p.m. 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Location: 
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd. 
Fruitport, MI 49415 
 
Attendance: 
The meeting was called to order at 4:48 p.m. and Dave Hazekamp, Steve Kelly, and Jason Kennedy 
were present. 
 

1. Director of Technology - The Committee reviewed the hiring process for the Director of 
Technology position. It is the recommendation of the District to hire Kyle Nielsen for the 
position. Kyle served as the network administrator at Whitehall District Schools from 
2005-2011, and as the network and information security solutions architect at Grand Valley 
State University from 2012 to the present. Kyle also served as a network and security 
instructor at Baker College from 2009-2017.   
 

2. Beach Elementary School Principal - The Committee reviewed the hiring process for the 
principal's position at Beach Elementary. First round interviews will be conducted on 
Friday, June 24, 2022 and second round interviews will be conducted on Tuesday, June 28, 
2022. 
 

3. Central Office Administrative Assistant - The Committee reviewed the hiring process 
for the central office administrative assistant’s position. First round interviews were 
conducted on Monday, June 20, 2022 and second round interviews will be conducted on 
Monday, June 27, 2022. 
 

4. Teacher Hiring Recommendations - The Committee reviewed the hiring process for the 
following positions: Second grade, middle school math, middle school math intervention, 
high school business, and middle school science. 
  

Page 104 of 115



5. Agreement for Business Services with North Muskegon - The Committee reviewed a 
proposed agreement between the District and North Muskegon Public Schools to continue 
to provide Business Services to that district. The agreement is for two years and includes a 
3% increase in cost to North Muskegon for each of the two years. The Board will be asked 
to approve the Agreement. 
 

6. Other - The Committee reviewed items from each of the other Board Committee meetings 
to provide a general overview of the topics to be discussed at the Regular Board Meeting 
on Monday, June 27, 2022. 
 

7. Public Comment: None 
 

8. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jason Kennedy, Superintendent 

Page 105 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Personnel   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date:  June 27, 2022 

  
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # XI-2 
 
 
From: Jason Kennedy 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
Shared Business Services with North Muskegon Public Schools. 
 

 
 

 
Background Information:  On July 1, 2020 the district entered into a shared services agreement with North 
Muskegon Public Schools where we provided business services to their district.  This arrangement has been 
very successful, and therefore is recommended for renewal through June 30, 2024. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact:    
FCS will bill and NMPS will pay $17,261 quarterly, for a total of $69,044, for business services from July 1, 
2022 to June 30, 2023.  This represents a 3% increase over the annual cost for the prior year of the 
agreement. On July 1, 2023 a 3% increase will be added to the annual cost of this service for a total annual 
cost of $71,116 from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:    
That the Shared Business Services Agreement with North Muskegon Public Schools be approved as 
presented. 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 

 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
      
 

Page 106 of 115



 

Fruitport Community Schools 
Superintendent’s Office 

3255 E. Pontaluna Road 
Fruitport, MI 49415 

Ph·231·865·4100 
Fax·231·865·3393 

www.fruitportschools.net 
 

Agreement for Business Services 
 
 

This agreement is made between North Muskegon Public Schools (NMPS) and Fruitport Community Schools 
(FCS) commencing July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2024. 
 
For the term of this Agreement, FCS shall assign one or more financial services employees to provide the 
following business services to NMPS: 
 

• Meet with the Superintendent and Board of Education to provide financial updates; 
• Prepare and monitor annual district budget and amendments; 
• Maintain grant records and financial reporting; 
• Provide direct assistance with any State required audits; 
• Handle investment transactions; 
• Prepare negotiation documentation prior to NMPS negotiating its collective bargaining agreements; 
• Reconcile bank statements; 
• Distribute property tax and state aid payments; 
• Prepare L 4029; 
• Complete necessary journal entries; and 
• Act as security administrator for financial system. 

 
The total number of hours spent on such business services by FCS employees shall not exceed twenty-four (24) 
per week. 
 
NMPS shall provide any and all financial information required by FCS and its employees to enable FCS to 
provide the above-stated business services.  Such information shall include, but not be limited to bank 
statements, historical information, past audits, collective bargaining agreements, grant applications and reporting 
requirements, and access to computer systems. 
 
FCS will provide the above-stated business services as an independent contractor and not as an employee of 
NMPS.  Neither party shall have the right to assign its rights or duties under the Agreement without prior written 
consent of the other party. 
 
FCS will bill and NMPS will pay $17,261 quarterly, for a total of $69,044, for business services from July 1, 
2022 to June 30, 2023.  This represents a 3% increase over the annual cost for the prior year of the agreement. 
On July 1, 2023 a 3% increase will be added to the annual cost of this service for a total annual cost of $71,116 
from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024.  Prior to June 30, 2024, this contract will be reviewed and considered 
for extension with appropriate cost increase not to exceed 3%. This contract may be modified at any time with 
mutual consent, in writing, by both parties.  Both NMPS and FCS agree to meet thirty (30) days prior to the 
contract’s expiration to discuss renewal. 
 
Non-Compete Clause:  NMPS will not directly or indirectly induce or attempt to induce any FCS employee 
from its business office to leave employment with FCS to work for NMPS unless there is mutual agreement 
between the two districts. 
 
 

Page 107 of 115



 
              
North Muskegon Public Schools Superintendent    Date 
 
 
              
Fruitport Community Schools Superintendent    Date 
 
 

Page 108 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Personnel   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 

To: Board of Education            Attachment # XI-3 
 
 
From: Mark Mesbergen 

 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
Non-affiliated increase for fiscal year 2023 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
After settling most of the contracts for Fruitport, the average increase for the upcoming fiscal year is 4%. 
The recommendation is to increase the non-affiliated staff wages by 4%. The breakdown of the staff with 
their increase is included. There were a couple of exemptions that were explained in the committees. These 
increases were used in the budget process that will also be presented at the June board meeting.  
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
$87,000 for the 2023 fiscal year.  
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
To approve the non-affiliated increases as presented.  
 
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 
 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 

Page 109 of 115



Employee Current Proposed Difference
Randall, Kathy $64,959 $72,500 $7,541
Winskas, John $88,293 $91,825 $3,532
Mesbergen, Mark* $122,130 $127,015 $4,885
Bergey, Pam $60,042 $63,000 $2,958
Baker, Brenda $47,765 $49,676 $1,911
Allison Camp $95,111 $98,915 $3,804

Wiseman, Jessica* $57,133 $59,418 $2,285
Ferels, Jenny $40,000 $43,500 $3,500
Laus, James $49,828 $55,000 $5,172
McMullin, Michael $48,000 $53,000 $5,000
Schurman, Jeff $50,907 $52,943 $2,036
Hazekamp, Dan $50,907 $52,943 $2,036
Shawl, Katie $45,185 $46,992 $1,807

Faulkner, Brad $24.84 $25.83 $0.99
Jacobs, Diane $24.38 $25.36 $0.98
Wypa, Jane $23.64 $24.59 $0.95
Johnston, Kendra $18.00 $18.72 $0.72
Cammenga, Robert $24.38 $25.36 $0.98
Erny, Steve $24.97 $26.50 $1.53

Noon Aides $11.50 $12.00 $0.50

* Per salary pay agreement which includes NMPS portion

Page 110 of 115



 
Student Affairs Committee  

Monday, June 20, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Location: 
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office 
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd. 
Fruitport, MI 49415 
 
Attendance: 
The meeting was called to order at 5:31 p.m. with Tim Burgess, Susan Franklin, Dave Hazekamp, 
Allison Camp, and Jason Kennedy present. 
 

1. Instructional Council Update: Curricular Resource Recommendations - Allison Camp 
discussed the Curriculum Review Cycle and the process that was used in consultation with 
mathematics and social studies consultants from Muskegon Area Intermediate School 
District with the Committee. A document entitled, “6-12 Social Studies and K-5 Math 
Textbook Pilot and Purchase Process” was discussed. Allison shared purchase 
recommendations from the Instructional Council with the Committee.  A recommendation 
to approve the following resources was provided to the Committee: 
 

● Grade K-5 Math: Into Math (HMH) - Cost: $307,623.33 
● Grade 6-8 Social Studies: HMH - Cost: $72,151 
● Grade 9-12 Social Studies: McGraw Hill - Cost: $81,184.53 

 
2. End of Year Goal Reporting Update - Allison Camp shared a copy of the Extended 

COVID-19 Learning Plan Goal Reporting Form and highlighted the end of year benchmark 
assessment achievement data by grade level and subgroup. Progress on goals in 
reading/ELA and mathematics were discussed, as were iReady assessment updates and 
growth achievement with instructional usage. 
 

3. Virtual Programming for 2022-2023: EdOptions Academy Course Catalog - Allison 
Camp discussed virtual programming options for the upcoming year and recommended 
that students in grades 6-12 who select virtual programming for the 2022-2023 be enrolled 

Page 111 of 115



in the EdOptions Academy. It is recommended that students selecting virtual programming 
in grades 3-5 be enrolled in the Muskegon County Virtual Academy. It is recommended 
that the Board approve the EdOptions Academy Course Catalog pursuant to requirements 
under Michigan’s Pupil Accounting Manual. 
 

4. Student Discipline: Updates to Student Handbooks - A discussion was held pertaining 
to disciplinary consequences assigned to students for violations pertaining to racial 
harassment, as well as other forms of harassment. Recommendations will be made when 
student handbooks are presented to the Board for approval before the start of the 2022-
2023 school year. 
 

5. Athletic Parent-Student Handbook - The Athletic Handbook was presented to the 
Committee for review. The only recommended changes by the Athletic Department are 
date changes from the previous school year. The Board will be asked to approve the 
Athletic Handbook on June 27. 
  

6. Other - The Committee reviewed items from each of the other Board Committee meetings 
to provide a general overview of the topics to be discussed at the Regular Board Meeting 
on Monday, June 27, 2022. 
 

7. Public Comment: None 
 

8. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jason Kennedy, Superintendent 

Page 112 of 115



 AGENDA SECTION: Student Affairs   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
 
To: Board of Education             Attachment # XII-2 
 
From: Allison Camp 
 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference: 
K – 5 Math and 6 – 12 Social Studies Textbook Adoption 
 

 
 

 
Background Information: 
As a part of our Curriculum Review Cycle that was established by the Board of Education, we piloted and 
reviewed instructional materials in 21 – 22 school year for 6 – 12 Social Studies and K - 5 Math for 
purchase in the 22 - 23 fiscal year.  Teams of teachers worked with ISD consultants to select materials to 
review, determine the selection criteria to judge the materials against, and evaluate feedback from staff and 
students to choose the most appropriate resources. 
 

  
 

 
Financial Impact: 
$460,958.86 paid out of ESSER III. 
 

 
 

 
Recommended Action: 
To move forward with the purchase of the HMH product – Into Math for K – 5 Math; the HMH product for 
6 – 8 Social Studies; and the McGraw Hill product for 9 – 12 Social Studies.  
 

 
 

 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 

 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 

Page 113 of 115



6 - 12 Social Studies and K - 5 Math Textbook Pilot and Purchase Process 
 

● As a part of our Curriculum Review Cycle that was established by the Board of Education, in 
the 2021 - 22 school year we were scheduled to pilot and review instructional materials for 
Social Studies and K - 5 Math materials/textbooks for purchase in the 22 - 23 fiscal year. 

● FCS worked in conjunction with the Social Studies and Math consultants from the Muskegon 
ISD to determine the materials, criteria, and timelines for review.   After connecting with 
colleagues around the state and looking through a list of different publishers, he (Social 
Studies consultant) provided us with a list of materials to consider (click here).  For math, we 
looked at those resources that have been vetted by EdReports (click here) and narrowed the 
list of those that “Meet Expectations.”  

● To get to the list that we piloted in Social Studies, the departments at the middle school and 
high school utilized PD time to dive deeper into the texts and resources using demo accounts.  
In the end, both schools wanted to pilot materials from Savvas, McGraw Hill, and National 
Geographic.  At the middle school, the team had been using the newest version of Houghton 
Mifflin Harcourt (HMH) because the online subscription we had previously been using stopped 
being supported after the end of the 2019 - 20 school year and we needed a product to get us 
through hybrid learning.   

● In math, we took the list of programs that were labeled “Meet Expectations” and the ISD 
consultants reached out to their colleagues across the state for feedback on the list and we 
narrowed it down to Zearn Math, Bridges, Illustrative Mathematics, and Into Math. 

● All teachers in 6 - 12 Social Studies participated in piloting 2 products - National Geographic 
and McGraw Hill. (The rep from Savvas never returned multiple emails or phone calls to get a 
pilot started and were subsequently taken off the list for consideration.)  27 K - 5 teachers 
participated in the math pilot. 

● Using student and staff survey information, the leadership teams from K - 5 math and 6 - 12 
Social Studies were able to make a recommendation for purchase in the 2022 - 23 fiscal year. 

● Those recommendations were taken to Instructional Council (a committee of teachers and 
administrators from across the district).  (click here for presentation).  Instructional Council 
reviewed the materials and data that was collected and made a recommendation to Student 
Affairs (subcommittee of the Board of Education) and the Board to make the purchase as 
recommended.  The recommendations are below. 

○ K - 5th Math Teachers =  Into Math - HMH 
○ 6th - 8th Social Studies Teachers = HMH 
○ 9th - 12th Social Studies Teachers = McGraw Hill 

● Cost to the district… 
○ K - 5th Math = $307,623.33 
○ 6th - 8th Social Studies = $72,151.00 
○ 9th - 12th Social Studies Teachers = $81,184.53 

● Total = $460,958.86 

Page 114 of 115

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1p3Jv_pLOzmgzkJm-lY_Tp6mzaBgzK8x7egSxyvceB2Q/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1rVKLrnQNr7F-uMzyU9wzS-MDQV8buNIXLFMpGUgKGu0/edit?usp=sharing
https://www.edreports.org/reports/math/k-8
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1ZEhR-FZrE5XDUJwXK-W9t3fE-xubxEs6k-hEEawl-ik/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1cTIBOGLyuWfjGeY9wiNQLVbtmQTS5DILdLeHi21T9D4/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1LqBG_oGIRShGZv3PvBPt0ecpE5Gy4QLf8QOYm71Ccsw/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1SJo7pPr8qRZszA9C4t0_l2Kc-BTB1-W7/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=103295163663445541997&rtpof=true&sd=true


 AGENDA SECTION: Student Affairs   
 
 BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM 
 
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 

  
To: Board of Education             Attachment #XII-3 
 
From: Jason J. Kennedy 
 

 
Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:   
Virtual Programming for 2022-2023; Approval of EdOptions Academy Course Catalog. 
 

 
 
Background Information: The District is recommending that students selecting virtual programming in grades 
3-5 be enrolled in the Muskegon County Virtual Academy (MCVA). The District is recommending that students 
selecting virtual programming in grades 6-12 be enrolled in the EdOptions Academy. It is recommended that the 
Board approve the EdOptions Academy Course Catalog pursuant to requirements under Michigan’s Pupil 
Accounting Manual. 

  
 
Financial Impact:  
 
MCVA costs approximately $4500 per student and EdOptions costs approximately $3300 per student.  The 
full program is capped at 50 students (10 at the elementary and 40 at the secondary schools).  All costs will 
be charged to ESSER III. 
 
 

 
 
Recommended Action: 

1. To approve the use of Muskegon County Virtual Academy as the District’s grade 3-5 virtual 
programming provider for the 2022-2023 academic year. 

2. To approve the use of EdOptions Academy as the District’s grade 6-12 virtual programming provider 
for the 2022-2023 academic year. 

3. To approve the EdOptions Academy Course Catalog, as presented and discussed. 
 

 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Vote:   ___ Buckner        ___Burgess     ___ Cole     ___ Franklin            ___ Hazekamp 
 

 ___ Kelly ___ Meeuwenberg 
 

 

Page 115 of 115


	ADPE176.tmp
	General Fund $338,454.32
	Other Funds:
	Early Childhood Center 4,385.12
	Food Service 49,226.25 Coop Ed (ISD) Tech Millage 937.00
	Capital Projects (Bond) 92,424.89
	Total Bill List $485,427.58

	ADP82B2.tmp
	$500 savings each year to the general fund.

	ADP8699.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP8098.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP7820.tmp
	Provides for proper authorization for the expenditure of funds (see attached resolution).

	ADPC45D.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP164.tmp
	Provides for proper authorization for the expenditure of funds (see attached resolution).

	ADP27E9.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP799B.tmp
	$0 to the district as we are paying the hard caps. The employees will save money.

	ADPD395.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP4A14.tmp
	$22,982 paid out of two different funding sources. $15,982 paid out of the General Fund ($10,000 coming from the Vocational Funds), and $7,000 High School Store (Trust and Agency) 

	ADP23DE.tmp
	$460,958.86 paid out of ESSER III.

	ADP57B5.tmp
	$87,000 for the 2023 fiscal year. 

	Non Affiliated Salary FY 23.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADPD3CF.tmp
	General Fund $207,576.88
	Other Funds:
	Early Childhood Center 1,570.61
	Food Service 70,796.93
	Total Bill List $279,944.42

	ADP1BB8.tmp
	BOARD REPORT (2)

	ADPED52.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP27CD.tmp
	September Transfers_10_14_2021-

	ADPBF8A.tmp
	Summary

	ADP828E.tmp
	Sheet2

	ADPE6C7.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADPE2AB.tmp
	General Fund $207,576.88
	Other Funds:
	Early Childhood Center 1,570.61
	Food Service 70,796.93
	Total Bill List $279,944.42

	ADPF54A.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ResumeAlysonWinton.pdf
	MASTER of arts | Expected in August of 2022 | Calvin University
	Bachelor of Science | May 2021 | Calvin University
	SLP Student Clinician | Rockford public schools |
	January 2022- March 2022
	SLP Student Clinician | Forest Hills Public Schools |
	August 2021- November 2021
	SLP Student Clinician | Calvin University Pediatric Clinic |
	September 2020- August 2021
	September 2020- August 2021




